SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
June 23, 2016
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, June 23, 2016, in
the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20" Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20" Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public
Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted,
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is
received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings,
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website

(http://www .bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBA
RT 1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda
packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in
advance of the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 231 Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may
desire in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of May 26, 2016, and June 9,
2016.* Board requested to approve.

B. Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board Members.* Board
requested to ratify.

C. Award of Contract No. I5NA-110, BART ADA Pilot Projects, Hearing
Loop.* Board requested to authorize.

D. Agreement with Kyungmi Shin for Public Art at El Cerrito Del Norte
Station (Agreement No. 0SHAO001-ARTIST.001).* Board requested to
authorize.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Saltzman, Chairperson
NO ITEMS

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland, Chairperson

A. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8990, Trucks, Hirail, Non-Hirail, (Sewer)
Vacuum.* Board requested to authorize.

B. Award of Contract No. 15PJ-130A, BART Earthquake Safety Program
Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction, for
Upgrades to the Electrical Distribution and Overcurrent Protection
Systems (C.O. No. 5).* Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 2o0f4



D. Change Order to Contract No. 15EK-120, Traction Power Substation
Replacement, ASL/KTE Installation, with Aldridge Electric, Inc., for
Early Termination of Contract (C.O. No. 2).* Board requested to
authorize.

E. Draft Policy for Enforcement of Ordinance No. 2016-1, Prohibiting
Patrons from Utilizing More Than One Seat during Commute Hours.*
For information.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS., AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson

A. Systemwide Bicycle Program Update.* For information.

B. West Oakland Station Development: Extension of Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement. * Board requested to authorize.

C. Millbrae Station Transit Oriented Development.*

i.  Project Status Report. For information.

ii.  Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan Final Environmental Report
(EIR) and BART Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations
and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan relating to the
Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development as described in the
EIR. Board requested to adopt.

iii. Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development as described in the
EIR. Board requested to approve.

iv.  Delegation of authority to General Manager or her designee to,
under certain circumstances, approve or disapprove of modifications
to Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development as described in the
EIR. Board requested to approve.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Office of the Independent Police Auditor. For
information.

9. CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Ending
March 31, 2016.* For information.

10. BOARD MATTERS

A. Supplemental Funding for West Contra Costa High-Capacity Transit
Study.* Board requested to authorize. (Director Mallett’s request.)

* Attachment available 3o0f4



B. Board Member Reports.

(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board

Meeting.)

C. Roll Call for Introductions.

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

D. In Memoriam.

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

11. PUBLIC COMMENT

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under

their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

12. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A.  CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Property:
District Negotiators:

Negotiating Parties:

Under Negotiation:

Government Code Section:

13.  OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available

Property Located at the Millbrae BART Station

Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning,
Development, and Construction; Sean Brooks,

Department Manager, Real Estate and Property
Development; and Ellen Smith, Planning Division
Manager

Urban Republic and San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District

Price and Terms

54956.8

4 0f4



DRAFT
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,764th Meeting
May 26, 2016

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held May 26, 2016, convening at 9:06 a.m. in
the Board Room, 344 201 Street, Oakland, California. President Radulovich presided; Patricia

K. Williams, Assistant, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Radulovich.

Absent:  None. Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting later.

President Radulovich announced that under the provisions of the Rules of the Board of Directors
of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, this was the time set to hold a public
hearing on Fiscal Year 2017 Budget, that staff would give a brief presentation on the item, and
that the meeting would then be opened for comments from the public.
Mr. Rob Umbreit, Department Manager, Budget Department, presented the item.
Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting
Mr. Joel Ramos addressed the Board.
There being no further public comment, the Public Hearing was closed.
President Radulovich announced that the following items would be continued to a future
meeting: Millbrae Station Transit Oriented Development Update; Closed Session, Conference
with Real Estate Negotiators; and Millbrae Station Transit Oriented Development action items.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 12, 2016.

2. Director Mallett’s Proposed Travel to Attend the American Public

Transportation Association (APTA) Rail Conference in Phoenix, Arizona,
June 19 to June 22, 2016.

3. Fiscal Year 2017 Proposition 4 Appropriations Limit.

4. Amendment No. 2 to the Property Exchange and Escrow Instructions
Agreement with the City of Fremont for the Warm Springs Extension
Project.

S. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 8997, Hanger, Hand Strap.

6. Electric Power Transmission and Distribution Contracts with PG&E.
-1-



DRAFT

Director Raburn requested that Item 3-B, Director Mallett’s Proposed Travel to Attend the
APTA Rail Conference in Phoenix, Arizona, June 19 to June 22, 2016, be removed from
Consent Calendar.

Director Raburn made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes — 9: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.

1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of April 28, 2016, be approved.

2. Adoption of Resolution No. 5319, In the Matter of the Establishment of
the Fiscal Year 2017 Appropriations Limit.

3. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute
Amendment No. 2 to the Property Exchange Agreement and Escrow
Instructions with the City of Fremont in connection with the Warm
Springs Extension Project.

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid
No. 8997, for the procurement of Hanger, Hand Strap, to Bentech, for the
Bid price of $311,850.00, including all applicable sales tax, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the
District’s protest procedures.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this

purpose.)

S. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute
bilateral transmission and distribution contracts for a period not to exceed
ten (10) years, with the Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E), for the
delivery of BART’s electric power.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Director Mallett’s Proposed Travel to Attend the
APTA Rail Conference in Phoenix, Arizona, June 19 to June 22, 2016, before the Board. The
item was discussed. Director Murray moved that Director Mallett’s travel from June 18 to 22,
2016, to attend the APTA Rail Conference in Phoenix, Arizona, be approved. Director Blalock
seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz,
Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 1: Director Raburn.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the
Board.

Anita Butler

Johnnie Carter

LaVerda Allen

Director Saltzman, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Fiscal
Year 2017 Annual Budget before the Board. Mr. Carter Mau, Assistant General Manager,
Administration and Budget, presented the Annual Budget. Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General

-



DRAFT
Manager, Operations; Mr. Timothy Moore, Web Services Manager; and Mr. John Mazza,
Assistant Chief, Reliability and Quality, presented the Customer Service Tracking Program. The
item was discussed.

Chris Finn addressed the Board.
Discussion continued.
Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Agreement with Aon Consulting, Inc., for Broker and
On-Call Consulting Services for Employee Benefits (Agreement No. 6M4425), before the Board.
Ms. Diane Iwata, HR Manager, Employment & Classification, presented the item. Director
Raburn moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Professional Service Agreement
No. 6M4425 to Aon Consulting, Inc., to provide Broker and On-Call Consulting Services for
Employee Benefits to the District, in an amount not to exceed $2,492,100.00, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures.
Director Murray seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 9:
Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Radulovich. Noes - 0.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Resolution to Approve the Establishment of a Labor
Compliance Program for the Lafayette Station Site Improvements Project before the Board.

Mr. Ardis Graham, Office of Civil Rights, presented the item. Director Murray moved adoption
of Resolution No. 5320, Resolution to Approve the Establishment of a Labor Compliance
Program for the Lafayette Station Site Improvements Project. Director Raburn seconded the
motion. The item was discussed. The motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes—7: Directors
Blalock, Keller, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes —2: Directors
Josefowitz and Mallett.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Proposed Title VI Process — BART Silicon Valley
Phase I Berryessa Extension Project before the Board. Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior Analyst, and
Mr. Thomas Tumola, Program Manager, presented the item. The item was discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

President Radulovich announced the Board would recess for 20 minutes, and that the Board
would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of that recess.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:13 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 12:43 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, and Saltzman.

Absent:  None. President Radulovich entered the Meeting later.

-3-



DRAFT - REVISED
Vice President Murray announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of 2016 State and Federal Legislation before the Board.

President Radulovich entered the Meeting and assumed the gavel.

Mr. Roddrick Lee, Department Manager, Government and Community Relations; Mr. Paul
Fadelli, Legislative Analyst, and Mr. Tim Schott, Schott and Lites Advocates Inc., presented the
state legislation items. The items were discussed.

Director Saltzman moved the Board support state legislation as recommended by staff, with the
exception of AB 1886, and the addition of support for AB 2523, SB 1051, and SB 1107, with AB
1886 to be voted on separately. Director Raburn seconded the motion.

Discussion continued. Director Mallett requested that the motion be bifurcated to vote on
AB 1640 separately. The maker and seconder of the motion agreed to the amendment.

Discussion continued. Director Raburn requested that the motion be further divided to vote on
AB 1592 separately. The maker and seconder of the original motion agreed to the amendment.

Discussion continued.
Chris Finn addressed the Board.

The main motion carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Blalock,
Josetowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.

Director Josefowitz moved that the Board support AB 1886. Director Raburn seconded the
motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 7: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, McPartland, Raburn, and Radulovich. Noes —2: Directors Murray and Saltzman.

Director Keller moved that the Board support AB 1592. Director Murray seconded the motion.
Director Saltzman exited the Meeting.

The motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 6: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett,
McPartland, and Murray. Noes —2: Directors Raburn and Radulovich. Absent — 1: Director
Saltzman.

Mr. Lee, Mr. Fadelli, and Ms. Emily Bacques, CJ Lake, presented the federal legislative items.
The items were discussed. Director Murray moved that the Board support the federal legislation
as recommended by staff. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous
electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Saltzman.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Potential 2016 Funding Measure for District Infrastructure
Update before the Board. Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs; and
Ms. Lori Lovett, Assistant Chief Mechanical & Engineering Officer — Engineering, presented the

4-



DRAFT
item, consisting of the System Renewal Program Plan 2016 and the BART Safety, Reliability,
and Traffic Relief Engineers Report. The item was discussed.

Chris Finn addressed the Board.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Transit Oriented Development Policy Update before the
Board. Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development and
Construction; Mr. Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Real Estate and Property Development;
and Ms. Abigail Thorne-Lyman, Manager of Planning, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Elizabeth Wampler
Joel Ramos

The item was discussed.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
matter of Change Order to Contract No. 20CE-210A, Procurement of Train Control Switch
Machines, with Alstom Signaling, Inc., for Additional Train Control Switch Machines (C.O. No.
5), before the Board. Mr. Raul Millena, Manager of Train Control Engineering, presented the
item. Director Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order
No. 5, Provision for Additional Train Control Switch Machines, including the Associated Switch
Machine Layout Component Parts, Tools, and Hardware for the Switch Machine Equipment, to
Contract No. 20CE-210A, Procurement of Train Control Switch Machines, with Alstom
Signaling, Inc., for the amount not to exceed $1,949,074.20, plus applicable taxes. Director
Keller seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —8: Directors
Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.
Absent — 1: Director Saltzman.

The Quarterly Performance Report, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2016 - Service Performance
Review, was continued to a future meeting.

President Radulovich announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 11-B
(Conference with Labor Negotiators) of the regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would

reconvene in open session at the conclusion of that closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 4:02 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 4:04 p.m.
Directors present: Directors Blalock, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, and Radulovich.

Absent: Director Saltzman. Directors Josefowitz and McPartland entered the
Meeting later.

Directors Josefowitz and McPartland entered the Meeting.

-5



DRAFT
Director Blalock exited the Meeting.

The Board Meeting recessed at 4:43 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 4:45 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, and Radulovich.

Absent: Director Saltzman.
President Radulovich announced there was no announcement to be made on Item 11-B.

President Radulovich called for the General Manager’s Report. Ms. Marcia deVaughn, Deputy
General Manager, advised the Board that the report would be submitted in a memo.

President Radulovich called for Board Member Reports and Roll Call for Introductions.
Director Blalock reported he had given a Better BART presentation.

Director Murray requested that staff return by June 9, 2016, with potential maintenance of effort
language that might be included in the BART bond for Board discussion. Director Keller
seconded the request.

Director Raburn reported he had attended the California Transportation Equity Summit in
Sacramento, the California Transit Association legislative session in Sacramento, the Bay Area
Council Outlook Conference, and the East Bay Economic Development Alliance meeting.
President Radulovich called for In Memoriam. No requests were received.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment. No comments were received.

The Board Meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m.

Patricia K. Williams
Assistant District Secretary



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,765th Meeting
June 9, 2016

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 9, 2016, convening at 9:05 a.m. in the
Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California; and 347 North La Jolla Avenue, Los Angeles,
California. President Radulovich presided; Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Blalock, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray,
Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich.

Director present in Los Angeles: Director Josefowitz.
Absent:  None.

President Radulovich called for Introduction of Special Guests. Director Blalock introduced and
welcomed Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner and Orinda City Councilmember Amy
Worth.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Agreement with Sperry Capital, Inc., for Ad Hoc Financial Advisory
Services (Agreement No. 6M2057).

2. Renaming of the Board Communications & Technology Modernization
Committee to “Technology and Communications Committee.”.

3, Award of Contract No. 04SF-170, Construction of East Contra Costa
BART Extension Project Sanitary Sewer Connection.

4. Award of Contact No. 15BN-120, Relief Shaft Blast Dampers BD39 and
BD40 at San Francisco Transition Structure and BD42 at Oakland
Transition Structure.

5. Award of Invitation for Bid No.8980A, Generators, Standby Mobile
Engine with Trailers.

Director Mallett made the following motions as a unit. Director Saltzman seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes —9: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.

1. That the Controller-Treasurer be authorized to award Agreement
No. 6M2057, to Sperry Capital, Inc., to provide Ad Hoc Financial
Advisory Services, in the amount not to exceed $300,000.00, for a term of
three years, with two options to extend the Agreement for one additional
year, each for an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 per year, subject to
availability of funds and compliance with the District’s protest procedures.

-1-



DRAFT

2. That the Board Communications and Technology Modernization
Committee be renamed “Technology and Communications Committee.”

3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 04SF-170,
for the Construction of East Contra Costa BART Extension Project
Sanitary Sewer Connection, to California Trenchless, Inc., of Hayward,
California, for the amount of $911,800.00, pursuant to notification to be
issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest
procedures.

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract
No. 15BN-120, Relief Shaft Blast Dampers BD39 and BD40 at SFTS and
BD42 at OTS, to Blocka Construction Inc., of Fremont, California, for the
Bid amount of $197,000.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District’s protest
procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to
protest procedures.

5. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid
No. 8980A, for the procurement of Generators, Standby Mobile Engine
with Trailers, three pairs of 200k W and two pairs of 275 kW generators, to
CD & Power, Martinez, California, in the amount of $1,142,374.08,
including all applicable sales tax, pursuant to notification to be issued by
the General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District’s protest
procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to
protests.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this

purpose.)
President Radulovich called for Public Comment. No comments were received.
President Radulovich announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Potential 2016 Funding Measure for District Infrastructure:
BART Safety, Reliability and Traffic Relief, before the Board. Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant
General Manager, External Affairs; Mr. Matthew Burrows, General Counsel; and Ms. Tamar
Allen, Chief Maintenance and Engineering Officer, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Amy Worth

Jason Elliott

Emily Loper

Alyssa Kies

Atlo H. Smith

Barbara Leslie

Kathy Hemmenway



DRAFT
Gilbert Gong
C.J. Hirschfield
Matt Nichols
Stuart Cohen
Alan Smith
Janet Magleby
Jon Spangler
Julia Raskin
Cindy Sandoval
Kristin Connelly
George Perezvelez

The item was discussed. Director Saltzman moved adoption of Resolution No. 5321, Resolution
Calling a Special District Bond Election for the Purpose of Submitting to the Qualified Voters of
the District the Proposition of Incurring Bonded Indebtedness to Acquire and Improve and
Replace BART Facilities, Fixing the Date of Said Election, the Manner of Holding the Same,
Providing for Notice Thereof, and Consolidating Said District Bond Election with the State of
California General Election to Be Held on November 8, 2016, Authorizing Preparation and
Filing of a Tax Rate Statement to Be Published in Connection with Said Election, and
Authorizing Board Members to File a Ballot Argument in Support of Such Bond Measure; and
adoption of Resolution No. 5322, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Bay Area Rapid
Transit District Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Certain Expenditures from Proceeds of
Indebtedness; and approval of the BART General Obligation Bond Program Report. Director
Murray seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes —9: Directors
Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, McPartland, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich.
Noes - 0.

President Radulovich and Director McPartland exited the Meeting.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Adoption of the Station Access Policy and Adoption of
the Transit Oriented Development Policy before the Board. Mr. Val Menotti, Chief Planning
and Development Officer; Mr. Sean Brooks, Department Manager, Real Estate and Property
Development; Ms. Hannah Lindelof, Principal Planner; and Ms. Abigail Thorne-Lyman,
Manager of Planning, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Mark Evanoff

Alan Smith

Pedro Galvao

Lily Gray

Craig Adelman

Jeff Levin

The item was discussed. Director Saltzman moved adoption of the Station Access Policy as
presented and adoption of the Transit Oriented Development Policy with an amendment to
Strategy E2 to include wording as follows:

Strategy E.2. Implement BART’s adopted Affordable Housing Policy, and aim for a
District-wide target of 30 percent of all units to be affordable, with a priority to very
low (,50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit dependent populations.

-3-



DRAFT
Director Murray seconded the motions.
President Radulovich re-entered the Meeting.

Discussion continued. Director Raburn requested an amendment to Goal A of the Transit-
Oriented Development Policy to include wording as follows:

Goal A. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating
places offering a mix of uses and incomes.

Directors Saltzman and Murray accepted the amendment.

The motion to adopt the Station Access Policy carried by roll call vote. Ayes—7: Directors
Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Abstain — 1:
Director Mallett. Absent — 1: Director McPartland. (The Station Access Policy is attached and
hereby made a part of these Minutes.)

The motion to adopt the Transit Oriented Development Policy carried by roll call vote. Ayes - 7:
Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.
Abstain — 1: Director Mallett. Absent — 1: Director McPartland. (The Transit Oriented
Development Policy is attached and hereby made a part of these Minutes.)

Director Raburn brought the matter of 2016 State Legislation before the Board. Director
Josefowitz presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Josefowitz moved the Board
oppose Senate Bill 986, Vehicles: Right Turns. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which
failed. Ayes —4: Directors Josefowitz, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes —4: Directors
Blalock, Keller, Mallett, and Murray. Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Director Josefowitz moved the Board support Assembly Bill 2299, Land Use: Housing units;
Assembly Bill 2501, Housing Density Bonuses; and Assembly Bill 1069, Land Use. Director
Saltzman seconded the motion, which failed. Ayes — 3: Directors Josefowitz, Saltzman, and
Radulovich. Noes —5: Directors Blalock, Keller, Mallett, Murray, and Raburn. Absent — 1:
Director McPartland.

Director Saltzman, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Issuance
and Sale of the District’s Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 2016 Refunding Series A, before the Board.
Ms. Rose Poblete, Controller/Treasurer, presented the item. Director Murray moved adoption of
Resolution No. 5323, Resolution of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Authorizing and Approving the Issuance and Sale of Not to Exceed $100 Million San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds; Authorizing the Execution and
Delivery of a Third Supplemental Indenture Pursuant to Which Such Bonds Are to Be Issued and
a Notice of Sale Pursuant to Which Such Bonds Are to Be Sold and the Publication of Notice of
Intention to Sell; Approving an Official Statement Relating to Such Bonds; Authorizing
Execution and Delivery of Certain Documents in Connection with the Issuance, Sale and
Security of Such Bonds, Including a Continuing Disclosure Agreement and an Escrow
Agreement; Delegating to the Controller/Treasurer of the District Power to Determine Final
Terms of Such Bonds and to Complete Said Documents; and Authorizing Certain Other Matters
Relating Thereto. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll call

4-



DRAFT
vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Downtown Berkeley Bike Station Third One-Year
Lease Extension before the Board. Ms. Susan Shaffer, Principal Right-of-Way Officer,
presented the item. Director Murray moved that the General Manager or her designee be
authorized to execute an amendment for a one-year extension to the existing lease with HSR
Berkeley Investments, LL.C, for approximately 4,000 square feet of commercial space at 2208
Shattuck Avenue, Berkeley, for the Downtown Berkeley Bike Station, in the amount of
$144,000.00, commencing July 1, 2016, and to extend such lease on a month-to-month basis
upon notification to the Board, to negotiate month-to-month holdover extensions for same for up
to six additional months. Director Blalock seconded the motion. The item was discussed. The
motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller,
Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent— 1: Director
McPartland.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Award of Agreements for Consulting Services for
Enterprise Asset Management System before the Board. Mr. Ravi Misra, Chief Information
Officer, presented the item.

Olivia Rocha addressed the Board.
The item was discussed and continued to later in the Meeting.

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2017 Annual
Budget before the Board. Mr. Robert Umbreit, Department Manager, Budget Department,
presented the item. Director Raburn moved adoption of Resolution No. 5324, In the Matter of
Approving the Annual Budget for the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and
Authorizing Expenditures for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017. Director Murray
seconded the motion. Director Mallett requested the vote on the resolution be bifurcated to
remove revisions to the Station Platform Controllers program, the reallocation of funds for an
Access Planner position, and the addition of a Principal Planner to support the Transit Oriented
Development Program. The maker of the motion declined to bifurcate the motion.

Alan Smith addressed the Board.

The item was discussed. The motion carried by roll call vote. Ayes — 6: Directors Josefowitz,
Keller, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes —2: Directors Blalock and Mallett.
Absent — 1: Director McPartland.

President Radulovich announced that the Board would enter into closed session under

Items 10-A (Public Employment) and 10-B (Conference with Labor Negotiators) of the regular
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of that
closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:20 p.m.




DRAFT
The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 12:30 p.m.

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Blalock, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman,
and Radulovich.

Director present in Los Angeles: Director Josefowitz.
Absent:  Director McPartland.

The Board Meeting recessed at 1:22 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 1:24 p.m.

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Radulovich.

Director present in Los Angeles: Director Josefowitz.
Absent:  Directors Blalock and McPartland.

President Radulovich announced there were no announcements to be made on Items 10-A and
10-B.

Director Saltzman brought the continued matter of Award of Agreements for Consulting
Services for Enterprise Asset Management System before the Board. The item was discussed.
Director Mallett moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Agreements for
Consulting Services for Enterprise Asset Management System, for an amount not to exceed
$4,000,000.00 each, to Accenture (Agreement No. 6M4434), Interloc Solutions (Agreement

No. 6M4435), and TechTu Business Solutions, Inc. (Agreement No. 6M4436), pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures
and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures. Director Keller
seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes —7: Directors
Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 2:
Directors Blalock and McPartland. ‘

In the absence of the Engineering and Operations Committee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson,
President Radulovich brought the matter of East Contra Costa BART Extension Project before
the Board. Mr. Zecharias Amare, eBART Project Manager; Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning
and Development Officer; Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations; and

Mr. Robert Powers, Assistant General Manager, Construction, Planning and Development, gave
a presentation on the Project Update and Change Order to Contract 04SF-130, Construction of
East Contra Costa BART Extension Project Trackwork, Systems, and Facility Finishes, with
Stacy and Witbec/Amoroso/Modern Railway Systems, a Joint Venture, for Installation of Two
Escalators at Antioch Station. The item was discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.



DRAFT
Director Keller moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute a Change Order, with
a not-to-exceed limit of $4,000,000.00, for the installation of escalators at the Antioch BART
Station, to Contract No. 04SF-130, for the Construction of East Contra Costa BART Extension
Project Trackwork, Systems, and Facility Finishes, subject to funding partner approval. Director
Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes — 7: Directors
Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent — 2:
Directors Blalock and McPartland.

Director Keller exited the Meeting.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Award of Contract No. 09DJ-140A, Repair and
Maintenance of Anode Cables, Anode Array Assemblies, and Cathodic Protection System,
before the Board. Mr. Balvir Thind, Senior Electrical Engineer, presented the item. Director
Saltzman moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 09DJ-140A, for
Repair and Maintenance of Anode Cables, Anode Array Assemblies and Cathodic Protection
System, to Vortex Marine Construction, of Antioch, California, for the Total Base Bid Price of
$860,368.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to
compliance with the District’s protest procedures; and that the General Manager be authorized to
exercise Option A for the Total Option A Bid Price of $871,563.00, and Option B for the Total
Option B Bid Price of $883,633.00, and Option C for the Total Option C Bid Price of
$895,243.00, subject to certification from the Controller/Treasurer of the availability of funding.
Director Raburn seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes — 6:
Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn, Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0.
Absent — 3: Directors Blalock, Keller, and McPartland.

Director Keller re-entered the Meeting.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Change Order to Contract No. 15EK-210,
Procurement of Traction Power Substations Phase 1, with Powell Electrical Systems, Inc., to
Remove Design, Engineering, and Traction Power Equipment (C.O. No. 22), before the Board.
Mr. Oversier and Mr. Steve Sims, Project Manager, presented the item. The item was discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

Director Mallett moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 22
to Contract No. 15EK-210, for removal of design, engineering, and traction power equipment,
for a credit to the District of $6,101,686.74. Director Raburn seconded the motion, which carried
by unanimous roll call vote. Ayes —7: Directors Josefowitz, Keller, Mallett, Murray, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Radulovich. Noes - 0. Absent —2: Directors Blalock and McPartland.

President Radulovich brought the matter of Review of the Draft Agenda for the Capitol Corridor
Joint Powers Board Meeting of June 15, 2016, before the Board. Mr. David Kutrosky, Managing
Director, presented the item.

President Radulovich called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace
Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, and
reminded the Board of upcoming events. Ms. Crunican thanked staff for their efforts in
preparing the BART Safety, Reliability and Traffic Relief bond measure, the Station Access
Policy, and the Transit Oriented Development Policy.

7-



DRAFT
Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

President Radulovich called for Board Member Reports and Roll Call for Introductions.
Director Saltzman reported she had attended the Access Tech Conference.

Director Saltzman requested that staff present ideas coming out of the Access Tech Conference
to the Board for further consideration. Director Josefowitz seconded the request.

Director Josefowitz requested staff respond to a request for Google maps to map station interiors.
Director Saltzman seconded the request.

President Radulovich called for In Memoriam. Director Blalock requested that the Meeting be
adjourned in honor of Muhammad Ali.

President Radulovich called for Public Comment. Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

The Meeting was adjourned at 2:40 p.m. in honor of Muhammad Ali.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



BART STATION ACCESS POLICY
Adopted June 9, 2016

VISION

For more than 40 years, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has been a
steward of major public investment to connect people and places. The BART Station Access Policy
is designed to support the broader livability goals of the Bay Area, reinforce sustainable
communities, and enable riders to get to and from stations safely, comfortably, affordably, and
cost-effectively.

GOALS

A. Safer, Healthier, Greener. Advance the region’s safety, public health, and greenhouse
gas (GHG) and pollution-reduction goals.

1. Ensure safe access for all users of the BART system, including users with disabilities.
2. Promote and invest in active transportation access modes to improve public health.

3. Prioritize the most sustainable access modes, with a focus on the lowest greenhouse gas
and pollutant emissions per trip.

4. Reduce the access mode share of the automobile by enhancing multi-modal access to and
from BART stations in partnership with communities and access providers.

5. Develop station-level designs that are consistent with the Station Design Access
Hierarchy (Figure 1).

B. More Riders. Invest in station access to connect more riders cost-effectively, especially
where and when BART has available capacity.

1. Asridership grows, invest in and manage access resources so as not to exacerbate peak
period — peak direction crowding, including by ensuring users can find parking spaces at
all times of day.

2. Develop access solutions that promote reverse-peak and off-peak ridership to optimize
use of the BART system.
C. More Productive and Efficient. Manage access investments, programs, and current
assets to achieve goals at the least cost.

1. Consider life-cycle costs, including capital and operating budget implications, using best
asset management practices.

2. Factor land value in decision-making, prioritizing access that generates the most riders
with the least space.

3. Consider the Station Access Investment Framework (Figure 2) in identifying contextual
access investments at each station, and seek to move stations from their existing to their
aspirational types.

D. Better Experience. Be a better neighbor, and strive for an excellent customer experience,
including on the first and last mile of the trip to and from BART stations.

1. Expand station access choices for all riders.



BART STATION ACCESS POLICY

2. Promote Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) on and off of BART property as a
powerful access tool, putting more riders within walking distance of stations, connecting
communities.

3. Collaborate with local jurisdictions to improve station access and create more
sustainable communities, including by promoting access improvements off BART
property.

4. Ensure high quality design for access improvements, with careful consideration of the
local context and the quality of the environment accessing BART.
E. Equitable Services. Invest in access choices for all riders, particularly those with the
fewest choices. v
1. Ensure that disadvantaged communities share in the benefits of BART accessibility.

2. Strive to be a partner to reduce the cost of living (i.e., transportation and housing) in the
Bay Area for low-income communities by increasing access and housing options (i.e.
TOD), providing greater access to opportunity.

3. Use Universal Design principles to improve safety and ensure access is available for
everyone at all times.
F. Innovation and Partnerships. Be an innovation leader, and establish durable
partnerships with municipalities, access providers, and technology companies.
1. Involve BART riders in station access decision-making.

2. Develop partnerships with municipalities, transit operators, developers, technology
providers, corporate shuttle providers, Transportation Network Companies, bike share
operators, advocacy groups and other entities to best meet access goals.

3. Continue to research and pilot emerging technologies and new forms of access services
to keep up with the rapidly-changing transportation ecosystem.

4. Remain technology- and operator-agnostic; make long-term investments in the access
technologies and services that best meet the needs of BART riders.

5. Prioritize projects that leverage other fund sources and local matches both to further
build partnerships and to capture more value from BART investments.

STRATEGIES

Plan, Innovate and Pariner
1. Plan for systemwide access mode shift to reduce drive alone rates.
2. Partner with interested stakeholders to improve access to the BART system.

3. Plan all BART facilities to be accessible to all users, including users with disabilities.

Invest and Implement

1. Investin the pedestrian and bicycle assets with a focus on BART property, and partner to
advance projects off BART property, including partnering on local initiatives, such as
Vision Zero, Safe Routes to School, and Safe Routes to Transit.



2.

BART STATION ACCESS POLICY

Invest in transit connections, including investments that improve passenger experience
in transit transfers (shelters, real-time information); seek to reduce barriers to transit
connections; and partner with local transit service providers on last mile improvements.

Prioritize station access investments that support ridership growth where and when the
system has capacity.

Improve management of existing parking resources, and invest in or partner on strategic
parking resources; including shared parking, on-street parking, programs to maximize
existing parking assets, and locating new parking resources only where other approaches
are not sufficient, consistent with the station typology investment matrix.

Manage and Assess

1.

2
3.
4

Manage resources we have.
Regularly collect and analyze station access data, and consider emerging data sources.
Develop a 4-year work plan to identify projects BART staff will advance in the near-term.

Revisit the Station Access Policy every ten years.

FIGURE 1: STATION ACCESS DESIGN HIERARCHY

Paratransit®

Private Taxi and

Auto TNC
Disabled

Motorcycle/Scaoter
Short Term Auto
Carshare

Carpool

Efectric Vehicle
Standard Viehicie

*All Stations must be paratransit accessible
Note: All stations must always remain readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities

3



14

"Ad1j0d WBWAO[A3(q PAIUSIIO-1SUBIL S, 1HVE AG PauIULISIap 3G 0] JUSWAOJIASP PIUSLIO-3ISUDIY JOf 1UBWIID|A3] BUINIDd,,
‘Bupyiod ym suoiangs 1o 10 JUSWISaAUL A1DPUOISS D SI JUSWSBOUDIN BUINIDG

{(Aupgow
ash paueys) Auedwo) ylomisN
uoineliodsued| 1oy sI DNL 910N

‘uojsuedxa upjied 0 UOI}INIISUOD
Ul1S9AULJ0U |IM 1MVg
:pe8einoduz 10N

‘pPapa3u se siapinodd ssa33. J3Ylo
yum Jauyied pue ‘syasse Sunsixe
aSeuew pue UlRIUIBW |JIM | HY]
1pajepowWoIIy

'sjeod Aoijod

Iduejeq S1UsWISaAU] Alepuodss
‘sjeo3d Adijod ylm JUS3SISUOD
‘Ayiadoud 1 Yyg Jo JO pue uo awi}
$E1S puB Spunj IsaAuUl [IIM 1dvd
:JU3WISIAUL Alepuodas

‘Alljlgeuleisns pue Ayajes

uo snooy ‘sjeod Adjjod anaiyde

1599 s109fo.4d Ajliond !sjeo8d ssaooe
yum uaisisuod ‘Auadoad 1yvg

40 J4O puUB UO W} JJBIS pUe Spuny
JO SjUBWIISaAU] azi34old JIM | HYY
;juawisanu] Asewiid

SINIWLSIANI SLNIINISIANI IdAL NOILLYLS

G2LYAOWNICIDY AHYANODIS AHVINIY

JIMOMIWV HL LNTFWLSIANI §S320V NOILVLS T 3dNDId

AJITOd $5320V NOILVLS Ldvd




Transit-Oriented Development Policy
Adopted June 9, 2016

VISION

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward of a large scale public investment.
This includes real estate assets essential to BART’s transit operations, and real estate assets that can be
used to catalyze transit-oriented development in furtherance of BART’s purpose and goals. BART
leverages these opportunities by working in partnership with the communities it serves in order to
implement the regional land use vision and achieve local and regional economic development goals.
Strengthening the connections between people, places, and services enhances BART’s value as a regional

resource.

GOALS

A.

Complete Communities. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating
places offering a mix of uses and incomes.

Sustainable Communities Strategy. Lead in the delivery of the region’s land use and transportation vision
to achieve quality of life, economic, and greenhouse gas reduction goals.

Ridership. Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations and times when the system has capacity to
grow.

D. Value Creation and Value Capture. Enhance the stability of BART’s financial base by capturing the
value of transit, and reinvesting in the program to maximize TOD goals.

E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban design to encourage non-auto transportation choices
both on and off BART property, through enhanced walkability and bikeability, and seamless transit
connectivity.

F. Affordability. Serve households of all income levels by linking housing affordability with access to
opportunity.

STRATEGIES

A. Manage Resources Strategically to Support Transit-Oriented Development

1. Develop a 4-Year Work Plan to assess how staff and financial activities toward TOD will be most fruitful.
Identify BART staffing priorities and assignments to promote TOD on and around District property, including
contributions to efforts such as planning and development, community engagement, funding and financing

strategies.

2. Favor long-term ground leases of no more than 66 years, rather than sale of property, as the standard disposition
strategy for joint development projects, except in cases where alternative approaches are required to achieve
specific development objectives or where other strategies would generate greater financial return to the District.

3. Solicit pfoposals for transit-oriented development in localities that have an adopted plan allowing for transit-
supportive land uses as defined in the TOD Guidelines. Utilize a competitive selection process, but ensure the
solicitation process considers property assembly with adjacent land owners for optimal TOD.

4. Revisit the Transit-Oriented Development Policy every 10 years.



B. Support Transit-Oriented Districts

1. Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use policies that: a) encourage
transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station properties, b) enhance the value of BART
land, and ¢) enhance the performance of the BART system as a whole.

2. Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and landowners, community development organizations,
finance entities, and consider strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and oft BART property.

3. For BART system expansion, ensure that transit-oriented development and value capture opportunities are
explicitly accounted for in major investments such as the location of new station sites, design and construction
of station facilities, and acquisition of new properties.

C. Increase Sustainable Transportation Choices using Best Practices in Land Use and Urban Design
1. Utilize BART’s TOD Guidelines to ensure future development and investments seamlessly connect BART
stations with surrounding communities.

2. Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access improvements on and around each BART station encourage net new
BART ridership, utilizing corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches to parking replacement as appropriate.
Following the aspirational Station Access Policy place types, use the following guidelines to replace current
BART parking as follows when developing BART property with TOD: strive for no or limited parking
replacement at “Urban with Parking” Stations; and use the access model to maximize revenue to BART from
development and ridership when determining a parking replacement strategy at all station types.

3. Utilize strategies including mixed-use development, transportation demand management, and pedestrian-
friendly urban design to encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and other modes
of non-auto transportation, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

D. Enhance Benefits of TOD through Investment in the Program

1. Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound financial parameters and the ability to
generate transit ridership, fare revenue, lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial
participation, and/or cost savings. Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying or accelerating
development opportunities.

2. Usea variety of financing and governance mechanisms, including joint powers authorities, assessment districts,
improvement districts, and lease credits to achieve station area TOD objectives.

3. Asappropriate, and in consideration of District-wide financial needs, reinvest revenues from the sale and lease
of BART land into the TOD Program, informed by the priorities identified in the 4-Year Work Plan.

E. Invest Equitably
Increase scale of development at and near BART stations through catalytic investments in TOD, to help address

—

the regional shortfall in meeting housing and other sustainable growth needs.

2. Implement BART’s adopted Affordable Housing Policy, and aim for a District-wide target of 30 percent of all
units to be affordable, with a priority to very low (<50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent
populations.

3. Ensure the 4-Year Work Plan addresses how BART will achieve its affordable housing goals.

Transit-Oriented Development Policy



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Memorandum

TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 15,2016
FROM: Interim Independent Police Auditor

SUBJECT: Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board Members

In accordance with Chapter 2-02 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), those members
of the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) appointed by BART Directors from
Districts 1, 3, 5, 7, and 9 as well as the Public-at-Large member shall have their terms of service
expire on June 30, 2016. All appointments of new members, or reappointments of currently-
seated members, shall be for two-year terms.

According to Chapter 1-05(G) of the Model, the Office of the Independent Police Auditor
(OIPA) will facilitate the application process for seats on the BPCRB and will coordinate the
selection process with the Office of the District Secretary and the Board of Directors (Board).

The BART Directors from Districts 1, 3, 7, and 9 have indicated an intention to reappoint each of
their current BPCRB appointees, respectively, and each of those current BPCRB appointees has
indicated acceptance of such reappointment. Before you for your consideration is reappointment
of the current Public-at-Large appointee, who has expressed an interest in serving another term.
The Board may instruct OIPA to solicit applications from the public for the seat, from which the
Board may make a selection in the future. The Board may also choose to allow the Public-at-
Large seat to remain vacant until a decision on further action is made. The appointment of a
BPCRB member to the seat representing District 5 presently remains pending.

In accordance with Chapter 2-06 of the Model, vacancies on the BPCRB shall be filled for the
unexpired portion of the term, subject to ratification by the Board. A vacancy in the seat that
represents one of the nine BART Districts shall be filled by the Director whose appointee has
ceased to serve.

At present, a vacancy exists in the seat representing BART District 2, which has a term that
expires on June 30, 2017. BART District 2 Director Joel Keller has selected a candidate to fill
the vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term.

Attached to this memorandum is a motion which, if adopted by the Board, will ratify the

appointments of the BART Directors from Districts 1, 2, 3, 7, and 9, and the Public-at-Large
member.

Page 1 of 2



Please contact me at (510) 874-7477 or rbloom@bart.gov at your convenience if you have any
questions about this matter.

Thank you,

@

Russell G. Bloom
Attachment

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager

Page 2 of 2



RATIFICATION OF BART POLICE CITIZEN REVIEW BOARD APPOINTMENTS

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of the following individuals to the BART
Police Citizen Review Board for the term of 2 years that expires on June 30, 2018:

Benjamin Douglas — District 1
William White — District 3
Sharon Kidd — District 7
George Perezvelez — District 9
Cydia Garrett — Public-at-Large

And the Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of the following individual to the BART
Police Citizen Review Board to fill the vacancy that exists in the seat representing BART
District 2, with a term that expires on June 30, 2017:

Cathryn Freitas — District 2



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

BOARD lNlTIATED ITEM: NO

atorIPr pared : Carl Orma \.

Orl T C ntrollerIT reasurer
/‘%’" &Zﬂw 4«/5/ 4ARY (/7 M@W ]

(8‘ ignature/Date: 6 11
e ) N

Award of Contract No. 15NA-110, BART ADA Pilot Projects, Hearing Loop

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE: To obtain the Board's authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No.
15NA-110 BART ADA Pilot Projects, Hearing Loop, to Exaro Technologies Corporation
("Exaro"), of Burlingame California for the Bid Price of $219,999.00.

DISCUSSION: This Contract is designated as a Micro Small Business Entity ("MSBE") Set
Aside Contract under the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program Small Business
Elements ("SBE Elements"). Bidders were informed that Bids may only be submitted by firms
certified as an MSBE, under the District's SBE Elements, prior to the Bid opening date. The
scope of this Contract includes, among other things, the designing, furnishing and installing a
hearing loop system at the Fremont BART Station. There are two areas of work within the
Station: the Station agent booth and the platform. This scope of work is a pilot project to provide
better communication to BART's hearing impaired customers. If this installation is successful
then similar projects may be undertaken at additional stations. :

The District provided advanced notice to 108 prospective Bidders on March 9, 2016 and
Contract Documents were sent to 22 plan rooms. The Contract was advertised March 11, 2016
in local publications. A total of three (3) firms purchased copies of the Contract Documents. A
pre-Bid meeting was conducted on March 30, 2016 and two (2) prospective Bidders attended the
meeting. Two (2) Bids were received and Bids were publically opened on May 24, 2016. A
tabulation of the Bids, including the Engineer's Estimate is as follows:

Bidder Location Total Base Bid Price
Exaro Technologies Corporation Burlingame, CA $219,999.00
AEKO Consulting Oakland, CA $237,500.00

Engineer's Estimate $176,860.00




Award of Contract No. 15NA-110, BART ADA Pilot Projects, Hearing Loop

After review by District Staff, the apparent low Bid, submitted by Exaro, was determined to be
responsive to the solicitation. Examination of Exaro's license, business experience and financial
capabilities has resulted in a determination that this Bidder is responsible. Staff has also
determined that the Bid price of $219,999.00, is fair and reasonable.

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of
Regulations, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, because it consists of minor alterations of
existing facilities involving no expansion of use.

The project will receive federal funding and is therefore subject to the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA). The federal funding agency, FTA, has concurred that implementation of the
project will not have a significant impact on the environment and qualified for a categorical
exclusion as defined under 23 CFR 771.118 (¢) (5) for actions promoting safety, security,
accessibility and effective communication.

Pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program SBE Elements, this
Contract was advertised as an MSBE Set-Aside. All Bidders are required to be a BART certified
MSBE at the time of Bid. The lowest responsive Bidder, Exaro, is a BART certified MSBE.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $219,999 for the award of Contract No. 15NA-110 is included in total project budget
15NAO0O1 — Accessible Signs and Way Finding. The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that
funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding
assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to track funding history against
spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of
these sources as listed.

As of June 1, 2016, $2,252,245 is available for this project from the following sources:

3004 FY12- Capital Projects Federal 1,332,888
3011 | FTA CA-90-Z276 FY15 Federal 95,648
354G | CA-90-Y604/FYO08 Capital Assistance Program Federal 273,521.00
354) CA-90-Y689/FY05 Main Line Renovation Federal 154,443
6018 | FY11-12 Project Match MTC Res#4044 Regional 333,222
6214 RM2 - Match to 53G, 54G, 54] Regional 38,611
8526 | FY14 Operating Allocation to Capital BART 23,913
2,252,245

The District has expended $564,262, committed $233,685, and reserved $0.00 to date for other



Award of Contract No. 15NA-110, BART ADA Pilot Projects, Hearing Loop

action. This action will commit $219,999 leaving an available fund balance of $1,234,300 in this
project. There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board may elect to reject all Bids and authorize Staff to re-advertise the Contract. Under
this alternative, Staff would have to reissue the Bid package and obtain new Bids. The
reissuance process will likely delay construction six (6) months and could result in Bid prices
that are higher than the current bids. The Board could also decline to authorize award of the
Contract, which will result in deferral of the pilot project for communication improvements for
BART's hearing impaired customers. If the project were deferred, BART Staff costs incurred to
date related to this project may need to be reimbursed to the FTA.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. ISNA-110, BART ADA
Pilot Projects, Hearing Loop, to Exaro Technologies Corporation for the Bid price of
$219,999.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to the
District's protest procedures and FTA's requirements related to protest procedures.



XECUTIVE DECISION DOCUNERT

F% G

RAL MANAGER ZPPROVAL: iy GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Iy 116 /N BOARD INITIATED ITEM: NO

Slgnaturé/Dat L1976 11 [] [
[

|Status: Routed |Date Created: 05/26/2016 §
TITLE:

AUTHORIZE THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT NO.
05HA001-ARTIST.001 WITH KYUNGMI SHIN TO PROVIDE TWO MOSAIC
MURALS FOR EL CERRITO DEL NORTE BART STATION

iginator/Prepared Hy: Jennifer?%on Geheral C | Controller/Treasurer : District Secretary BARC
- ning, Develgpment & Construction ! WP : S L(}s‘o
\ Nl NIz (. &
, . W Vv /Z/ o)
: / {fé’ﬁ% ] N
)

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager, or the General Manager's
designee, to negotiate and execute Agreement No. 0SHA001-ARTIST.001 with Kyungmi Shin
(dba Shin/Gray Studio) to design, fabricate and supervise the installation of two mosaic murals as
part of the El Cerrito del Norte Station Modernization.

DISCUSSION:

On October 1, 2015, the District issued Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) Contract
No.05HA001-ARTIST.001 to procure an artwork to enhance the El Cerrito del Norte Station
entrance/departure experience as part of the station modernization program. The RFQ solicited
an artist or artist team to design, fabricate and install two mosaic murals to be placed in an area
approximately 8'7" (h) x 42' (w) over the ticket vending machines for a total budget not to exceed
$180,000. Minimum qualifications included 1) California residency; 2) demonstrated experience
producing architecturally-scaled glass or ceramic mosaic panels; 3) demonstrated skills
designing, fabricating and managing a public art project relative to the scale and complexity of
the planned art project at El Cerrito del Norte; 4) experience working cooperatively with multiple
professionals including architects, engineers, project personnel, artists, designers, and community
members; and 5) aesthetic excellence and a minimum of five years of work as a practicing artist.

The RFQ was sent to a number of external resources where artists search for similar
opportunities including Americans for the Arts Public Art listserv; California Arts Council; Art
program managers for the Cities of Oakland, San Francisco, Sacramento, Palo Alto, San Jose,
Berkeley, and Emeryville; Southern and Northern California Public Art Networks; the Los
Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LA Metro); Oakland Art Murmur and
participating galleries; SFMOMA; Yerba Buena Center for the Arts; Galeria de la Raza; and the
Alameda County Arts Commission. The RFQ was also sent directly to a number of artists and
posted on BART s website. In addition to the online outreach, BART staff completed nine
separate outreach meetings for the local arts community at the following locations and dates:
Berkeley Art Center (8/15/15), ProArts (Oakland, 7/18/15), East Bay Center for Performing Arts



(Richmond, 7/20/15), Root Division (SF, 7/8/15), Joyce Gordon Gallery (Oakland, 7/8/15),
Yerba Buena Alliance (SF, 8/4/15), and Omi Gallery (Oakland, 7/27/15). Each of these
organizations also shared the opportunity with their own networks. Over 200 artists attended
these workshops that dlscussed the open opportumtles for the current Station Modernization
Projects. = -

Artists submitted qualifications and letters of interest via the online CaFE system
(callforentry.org). 53 applications were received during the six-week period the RFQ was open,
and after initial review by the art consultant, 25 applicants were determined to have met the

~ Minimum Qualifications and moved forward for further review. On December 11, 2015, the 25
applications were reviewed by a Selection Committee ("Committee") consisting of BART staff,
City of El Cerrito staff, arts professionals, and community representatives from El Cerrito and
Richmond including one representative designated by the El Cerrito Arts and Culture Committee.

Proposals were reviewed on a series of criteria established by BART and the Committee
including those indicated above, as well as the Committee's determination of the artist's potential
to design a work that is timeless, aesthetically compatible with the design of the new areas in the
station, and complementary to and compatible with the station's existing mosaic murals.

The following artists/teams were invited to a Request for Proposal ("RFP") phase for which each
team was asked to develop a proposal for an honorarium of $2,000:

Artist/Team Location
1. Colette Crutcher and Aileen Barr San Francisco, CA
2. Kyungmi Shin Los Angeles, CA
3. Wowhaus (Ene Osteraas-Constable & Scott Constable Sebastopol & Oakland, CA

A Request for Proposals ("RFP") was distributed to the these artists who were invited to submit
proposals. A pre-proposal meeting for the RFP was held on February 2, 2016. The meeting
included presentations by BART staff, City of El Cerrito staff on the City’s plans and visions,
and the El Cerrito Historical Society. Following presentations to the artists, the E1 Cerrito Arts
and Culture Committee hosted a public session where the artists were invited to present their
portfolio and approach to their work, and converse with the committee members and community.

On March 7, 2016, the artists submitted draft concepts to BART and the art consultant for initial
review and comment on initial technical specifications and general artistic direction. The artists
submitted final concept proposals on March 28, 2016. The Committee reconvened on April 7,
2016 to review the three concept proposals. The Committee considered the proposals utilizing
the following criteria: 1) aesthetics, 2) relatlonshlp of artwork to station design, 3) durability and
maintenance, and 4) budget.

Upon review of the presentations and proposals, the Committee and BART Staff determined that
additional comment and review was needed prior to making the final selection. Each artist was
given feedback from the committee and offered the opportunity to revise and resubmit their

AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR MOSAIC ART AT EL CERRITO DEL NO



proposals.

The Committee reconvened on May 13 to review the revised designs of the three artists/artist
teams and make their final selection. Based on the oral presentations and concept proposals, the
. Committee determined that the most qualified artist was Kyungmi Shin. If authorized, staff will
enter into negotiation of an agreement with Ms. Shin based on a model agreement referenced as
part of the RFQ.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Agreement as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $180,000 for Contract # 0SHA001-ARTIST.00 is included in total project budget for
FMS # 05HA001 — El Cerrito Del Norte Gateway. The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies
that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding
assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to track funding history against
spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of
these sources as listed.

As of June 13, 2016 $28,568,525 is available for this project from the following sources:

535A FY10- 11 Prop lB PTMISEA State 10,000,000
535B FY14-15 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State 5,112,420
6646 CCTA Measure J - Res 13-09-P Local 125,000
6649 CCTA Measure J - Res 16-17-9 Local 11,503,000
8526 FY2014 Operating Cap Alloc BART 328,105
8528 Stations & Access form Pkg Rev BART 1,500,000
Total 28,568,525

BART has expended $2,926,925, committed $183,591 and reserved $20,000,000 to date for
other action. This action will commit $180,000 leavmg an available fund balance of $5,278,010
in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves

ALTERNATIVES: Reject all of the proposals and reinitiate the process of soliciting new
qualifications and proposals. The amount of time necessary to reissue the RFQ and a subsequent
RFP would result in the artwork being delayed beyond the current station modernization
schedule. Alternately a determination could be made to reject all proposals and either eliminate
this art component or any art component from the El Cerrito del Norte station modernization

project.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR MOSAIC ART AT EL CERRITO DEL NO



MOTION: The General Manager, or the General Manager's designee, is authorized to negotiate
and execute Agreement No. 0SHA001-ARTIST.001 with Kyungmi Shin (dba Shin-Gray Studio,
Inc.) for the design, fabrication and supervise the installation of a two mosaic murals at El

~ Cerrito del Norte station in an amount not to exceed $180,000.

AUTHORIZATION TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR MOSAIC ART AT EL CERRITO DEL NO



-

AL MANAGER APP!

OVAL:
&1 G

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

LTI

Originatoy/Prepdrediy: Luis

Dept: /)j ‘ }

ignature{Date:

Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

[1

s

|Status: Routed

H

| Date Created: 06/13/2016

TITLE:

Award of IFB No. 8990, Trucks, Hi-Rail and Non-Hi-Rail (Sewer) Vacuum

NARRATIVE:
PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization to award Invitation For Bid (IFB) No. 8990 to Golden Gate Truck
Center, Oakland, CA, in the amount of $2,351,974.06, including all applicable sales tax, for the
purchase of four (4) Sewer Vacuum Pump Trucks (Vacuum Trucks) configured as follows: one (1)
large hi-rail vehicle, one (1) large vehicle (not hi-rail), and two (2) small hi-rail vehicles.

DISCUSSION:

Storm water discharges in California are regulated through National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permits. Purchase of the new vacuum trucks will aid BART in accomplishing its
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) initiative to properly drain, channel and control
scheduled and unscheduled discharges that may result from power washing station platforms, vehicle
related spills and waste water accumulations from flushing storm drain lines. MS4 management

ensures there is “Only rain down the drain.”

The Right of Way Maintenance Group, Structures Department uses vacuum trucks designed with
turbo charged water pumps to remove sediment, debris, and wastewater from storm drains, catch
basins and flooded sewer lines throughout the District. A high pressure jet rodder hose on the truck's
maneuverable front reel is also available as a hydro excavator for safe trenching around hidden gas
and power lines. The Track Department utilizes the high powered vacuum pumps to automate the
removal of ballast, contaminated soil and solid waste when replacing rail and ties to expedite project
completion and reduce accident potential. Spray equipment on the truck can also assist with tunnel

and subway cleaning and maintenance.

The truck is powered by a carbon emission compliant, tier four final diesel engine with automatic
transmission and a heavy duty modular sub-frame supporting an engine driven positive displacement
vacuum system, rotating extendable boom and pick up hose, forty (40) gallon per minute at 2,500
pounds per square inch pump, jet spray hose, fifty (50) degree dump angle debris body, clean water
tanks with filtration for recycling waste water and cab that seats up to three (3) crews. Liquid and
solid waste can be efficiently collected, separated, and dispersed by the trucks’ hydraulic systems,

and spray nozzle power.

Currently two (2) hi-rail vacuum trucks are operating within the District, purchased in 1988 and




1985. Both vehicles have reached the end of their useful lives and will be retired.

The new large vacuum trucks, one (1) hi-rail and one (1) not will be used on and off rail as needed.
The two (2) small hi-rail vacuum trucks, designed to meet BART’s on track clearance requirements
for subways and tunnels, will provide previously unavailable capacity for the District to maintain a
state of good repair.

A notice requesting bids was published on May 27, 2016 and bid requests were mailed to five (5)
prospective bidders. Bids were opened on June 7, 2016 and four (4) bids were received. The apparent
low Bid, Peterson Trucks, Inc., was determined by Staff to be non-responsive due to multiple
exceptions taken in the bid documents to Specification design and performance requirements.

Bidder Unit Price Quantity (Truck) Extended Total
Peterson Trucks, Inc. $624,042.85 1 (Large Hi-Rail) $ 624,042.85
San Leandro, CA $513,455.26 1 (Large Non-Hi-Rail) $ 513,455.26
$588,074.96 2 (Small Hi-Rail) $1.176,149.92
Grand Total Including 9.5% Sales Tax $2,313,648.04
Golden Gate Truck Center  $629,430.86 1 (Large Hi-Rail) $ 629,430.86
Oakland, CA $523,233.26 1 (Large Non-Hi-Rail) $ 523,223.26
$599,659.97 2 (Small Hi-Rail) $1,199,319.95
Grand Total Including 9.5% Sales Tax $2,351,974.06
Owen Equipment $635,429.49 I (Large Hi-Rail) $ 635,429.49
Sacramento, CA $531,435.76 1 (Large Non-Hi-Rail) $ 531,435.76
$621,463.61 2 (Small Hi-Rail) $1,242.927.23

" Grand Total Including 9.5% Sales Tax $2,409,792.47

Haaker Equipment Company  $660,846.74 1 (Large Hi-Rail) $ 660,846.74
La Verne, CA $552,400.13 1 (Large Non-Hi-Rail) $ 552,400.13
$646,322.66 2 (Small Hi-Rail) - $1.292.645.31

Grand Total Including 9.5% Sales Tax $2,505,892.17

The independent cost estimate by BART staff is: $2,000,000.00, including 9.5% sales tax.
Staff has determined that Golden Gate Truck Center, Oakland CA, submitted a responsive bid. Staff
has also deemed the price to be fair and reasonable based upon the independent cost estimate by

BART staff and a market survey of qualified suppliers.

Pursuant to the revised DBE Program, the Office of Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender neutral
efforts for Invitation for Bid (IFB) contracts. Therefore, no DBE goal was set for this contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Award of IFB No. 8990, Trucks, Hi-Rail and Non-Hi-Rail (Sewer) Vacuum 2



Funding of $2,351,974 is included in the total budget for Project 15TD000 — WAYSIDE
EQUIPMENT FY06. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently
available to meet this obligation.

The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project since and is included in
totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

Fund Group f Total Avarded
Various FTA Grant sources 37,690,024
State Prop1B & Local Aves Granis 4,078,218
BART OCperating aliccation to Capital 8,450,187
T e 5@325@2@

As of June 13, 2016, $50,225,429 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$17,051,198, has committed $25,529,054 and reserved 5,249,368 to date for other actions. This
action will commit $2,351,974, thus leaving an available balance of $43,835 remaining in fund
resources for this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

The Alternative is to reject the "Bids" and re-advertise. Re-advertising is not likely to result in more
competition or lower prices and would result in the District’s continued reliance on inefficient
equipment, generating rising maintenance cost and longer clean-up response times.

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by Staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds are
available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 8990 for the procurement of
Trucks, Hi-Rail and Non-Hi-Rail (Sewer) Vacuum, four (4) each, to Golden Gate Truck Center,
Oakland, CA in the amount of $2,351,974.06, including all applicable sales tax, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District’s Protest

Procedure and FTA requirements related to protests.

Award of IFB No. 8990, Trucks, Hi-Rail and Non-Hi-Rail (Sewer) Vacuum 3









ba

.
/ AN
GENERAL MANAGER

'«,Mg.

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

PPROVAL: B

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to the Board of Directors

A |BOARDINITIATED ITEM: No

OriginafdflPr pare by:'HQng Mei Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary
Dept; Dept: Planning, Development and GJ
Consfructiog - Earthduake Safety Program . @ ;
fps e A
Signature/Date’ ,/’/5’ @k\}‘i’é %}lﬁ:@ 1 [ 1]
L4 Y
|Status: Routed | Date Created: 06/02/2016
TITLE:
Contract No. 15PJ-130A BART Earthquake Safety Program Fruitvale Station and
Coliseum Station
NARRATIVE:
PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization to award Contract No. 15PJ-130A, BART Earthquake Safety
Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station.

DISCUSSION:

The Work included in this Contract is part of BART’s Earthquake Safety Program (ESP), which
was developed in anticipation of potential future major earthquakes in the San Francisco Bay
Area, and includes construction of structural modifications to the original BART system to
provide adequate resistance to forces arising in a major seismic event.

The Work includes the base contract work (Base Bid) and Options A and B. The Base Bid
includes construction of structural and related site work, and architectural and
mechanical/electrical modifications, to improve the seismic safety of the Fruitvale and Coliseum
Stations. Option A includes the removal and reconstruction of the existing breakroom at the
Fruitvale Station and Option B includes the construction of a new breakroom at the Coliseum
Station.

The District sent out 372 Advance Notices on March 8, 2016. The Contract was advertised on
March 9, 2016 and Contract Books were sent to 21 plan rooms. A total of 16 firms purchased
copies of the Bid Documents. One Pre-Bid Meeting and Jobsite tour were conducted on March
23, 2016 with a total of 11 potential Bidders in attendance. Four (4) Bids were received and
publicly opened on Tuesday, May 17, 2016.

Tabulation of the Bids including the Base Bid and Options A and B along with the Engineer's
Estimate, is as follows:

No. BIDDER LOCATION Base Bid Option A Option B TOTAL
AMOUNT
1. Federal Solutions San Ramon, $13,446,650.00 $275,000.00 $375,000.00 $14,096,650.00
Group, Inc. CA
2. Brosamer and Wall, Berkeley, CA $14,198,000.00 $130,000.00 $200,000.00 $14,528.000.00
Inc.




3. Disney Construction, | Walnut $14,400,700.00 |  $150,000.00 | $150,000.00 | $14,700,700.00
Inc. Creek, CA

4, ProVen ' Berkeley, CA $15,852,777.00 |  $325,000.00 | $600,000.00 | $16,777,777.00
Management, Inc.
ENGINEER’S $14,716,000.00 |  $239,000.00 | $315,000.00 | $15,270,000.00 |
ESTIMATE

The apparent low Bid submitted by Federal Solutions Group (FSG) is responsive. The Bid price
was determined to be complete, fair and reasonable. Examination of the Bidder’s business
experience and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that the Bidder is
responsible.

This Contract was advertised pursuant to the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program requirements for Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) funded contracts. The Office of Civil Rights (OCR) reviewed the scope
of work for this Contract and determined that there were subcontracting opportunities; therefore,
a DBE participation goal of 12% was set for this Contract. FSG is certified as a DBE and
committed to a DBE goal of 53.3%. OCR has determined the bidder has met the DBE
participation goal set for this contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $14,096,650 for the award of contract 15PJ-130 is included in the total project budget
for FMS #15PJ001 — A Line Coliseum and Fruitvale. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts
funding assigned to the referenced project since March 2014, and is included in totality to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended
from a combination of sources as listed.

F/G 3840 - FHWA STPLZ 6000(60) $ 3,016,056
F/G 801J — ESP Unissued GO Bond $20,582,944
Total $ 23,599,000

As of May 23, 2016, $23,599,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$1,303,879 and committed $695,299 and reserved $2,026,794 to date for other actions. This
action will commit additional 14,096,650 leaving an available fund balance of $5,476,378 in
fund sources for this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:
The Board may reject all Bids and ask for the Contract to be re-bid. A re-bid is not likely to result
in lower bid prices and will result in the delay of required seismic retrofit work at Fruitvale

Contract No. 15PJ-130A BART Earthquake Safety Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station 2



Station and Coliseum Station.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION: ‘
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15PJ-130A, Earthquake Safety

Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station, to Federal Solutions Group, Inc. for the Base
Bid amount of $13,446,650.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and
subject to the District's protest procedures and FHWA’s requirements related to protests. The
General Manager is also authorized to exercise Option A Bid Price of $275,000.00 and Option B

Bid Price of $375,000.00 subject to availability of funds.

Contract No. 15PJ-130A BART Earthquake Safety Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station 3



FUNDING SUMMARY - EARTHQUAKE SAFETY PROGRAM

ESP Financial Summary for 15PJ-130A Current
Baseline Forecast
PROJECT ELEMENT Budget as of
(2004 GO Bond) 5/31/16 REMARKS
ENVIRONMENTAL, ENGINEERING, AND B -
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT o
GEC (Bechtel Team)]  $105,000,000 $257,500,000
Other GEC $81,478,000 $0 B S
Subtotal GEC|  $186,478,000 $257500,000f
- CM|  $61,498,000 $95,400,000 ) -
Environmentalf $1,042,796 $2,198,237] e )
| TOTALE, E & CWi $249,018,796 $355,008,237 1
CONSTRUCTION
Transbay Tube B B
___________ Oakland Ventilation Structure] ~ $1,033,000 $1,153,096
Oakland Landside $17,970,000 $10,699,433 )
San Francisco Ferry Plaza B
o SFTS (including Tube liner) $73,037,000 $5,665,414 ) o
Marine Vibro Demo $101,285,000 $11,000,000 -
AAAAA Stitching $82,962,000 $0 - R
Additional TBT Retrofits] $0 $317,295,302]
Aeriai Guideways -
- West Oakland/North Oakland $112,923,000 $85,258,770 e
Fremontl  $178,224,000 $45,700,000
Concord] ~ $36,500,000 $12370889f )
Richmond $80,155,000 $34,800,000 -
San Francisco/Daly City $36,590,000 $9,600,000 )
Stations (18) $126,961,000 $92,146650, N
Other Structures - N
LMA $5,529,000| $12,100,000
Yds & Shops $12,436,000 $19,500,000 o
Parking Structures $14,437,000 $14,600,000 )
Miscellaneous Cleanup $2,620,764
At Grade Trackway $22,361,000 $0
34.5kV Replacement | $42,490,000
Systems - $7,066,000 $17,500,000 o -
| TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $909,469,000 $734,490,318 ]
[PROGRAN COSTS -
Program Costs ( Hazmat, ROW, Consult, Staff) $159,894,204 $214,851,500 3
Add Auth to Execute Agrnt w/Public & Private Entities - $5,000,000
__Contingency $32,104,000 $0 )
| TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS $191,998,204 $219,851,500 1

BASELINE FUNDING

$1,350,486,000

REVISED FUNDING

$1,309,440,055

$1,277,375,274

$32,064,781 Outside Adopted Funding

Adopted Funding

6/13/2016



ba
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GE ERAL MANAGER APPRQVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to Board of Directors
DATE: %é ! .é ZQ ( > L BOARD INITIATED ITEM: NoO Py
Originatgr/Prepared by: Thomas Horton Sent Goupisel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary e
Dept: PIP&C Ll AL AT
M @vﬂmfiﬂ

Signature/Date:
TITLE:

{
Contract No. OlRQ 110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities,
Change Order No. 5, Electrical and Overcurrent Protection Upgrades

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 5 to Contract No. 01RQ-110,
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, for upgrades to the electrical
distribution and overcurrent protection systems at the Hayward Main Shop, for an amount not to
exceed $1,300,000, with Clark Construction..

DISCUSSION:

The Board of Directors authorized award of Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, to Clark Construction on July 23, 2015, for the amount
of $98,390,000. The Contract will construct the new Component Repair Shop and add additional
vehicle lifts and associated utilities and trackwork at the existing Main Shop. Included was an
upgrade of the electrical cable and transformer supplying the Main Shop Building to account for
the additional power needed for the new lifts.

After award of the Contract, it was determined that, in order to activate the new cable supplying
the Main Shop, the existing Substation E would have to be shut down for a number of days.
Substation E supplies power to the entire existing Hayward complex, including the yard tower,
test track and other vital functions. It was identified that temporary power must be provided to
these facilities during the Substation E shutdown period. In addition, the condition of existing
circuit breakers, cabling and other electrical components at these facilities dictated that some of
them would require repair or replacement in order to support the operation of the required
temporary generators. There has also been interference from unknown underground utilities. As
this additional work is not described in the Contract Documents, a change is required, amounting
to an estimated $1.3 million.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior to
execution for compliance with procurement guidelines. The Office of the General Counsel will
approve the Change Order as to form prior to execution.



CQ #5, Contract No. 01RQ-110

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total not-to-exceed amount of $1.3 million for Change Order No.5 to Contract No.

01RQ-110 is included in the total project budget for 01RQ003, Hayward Maintenance Complex
(HMC) Project. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available
to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project
since December 2014, and is included in totality to track funding history against spending
authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of these
sources as listed:

F/G 8529 — FY15 Operating Allocation to Capital $ 1,522,633

F/G 8526 — FY14 Operating Allocation to Capital $ 4,477,367
F/G 656K — Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) $ 49,710,000
F/G 5602 — Prop 1A High-Speed Passenger Train Bond Fund (HSPTBF) | $ 68,389,000
Total $ 124,099,000

As of June 6, 2016, $124,099,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended $13,327,711
and committed $89,004,213 and reserved $7,055 to date for other actions. This action will commit
additional $1,300,000 leaving an available fund balance of $20,460,021 in these fund sources for this
project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If this Change Order is
not approved, the electrical upgrade to the Main Shop building could not proceed, and the
newly-installed vehicle lifts could not be operated.

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 5, Electrical and Overcurrent
Protection Upgrades, to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project
Maintenance Facilities, for an amount not to exceed $1,300,000, with Clark Construction.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ATTACHMENT #1
CONTRACT NO. 01RQ-110

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor: ~ Clark Construction Group

Contract No./NTP: 01RQ-110/October 21, 2015

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

CO No: 05.2

Contract Description: ~ Hayward Maintenance Complex Project — Maintenance Facilities

Percent Complete as of:

Dollars Percent Complete as of:

COST
Original Contract Award Amount

Change Orders:

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s:

Board Authorized Change Orders:
This Change Order No. 5.1:
Subtotal of all Change Order

Revised Contract Amount:

SCHEDULE
Original Contract Duration:

Time Extension to Date:

Time Extension Due to Approved COs:

Revised Contract Duration:

05/31/2016 - 15%
05/31/2016 - 26%

% of Award

3%

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

$277,369.00

$1.300.000.00

Contract Amount

$98,390,000.00

$1,577,369.00

860 Days
0 Days
0 Days
0 Days

Electrical Provisions for Cable Upgrades & Overcurrent Protection

$1,577,369

$99,967,369.00



DOCUME

ENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQD:
0 4 e » Approve and place on June 23, 2016 Board Agegfla
DATE: L)1l O\, BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No .
Originatorlepﬁred bY: Steve Sims — | Geferal Co s}! B Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary | BAl )
Dept: M&E Engineseging, Traction Power w : 1/D/ /‘ ﬁ/ ) 4 P 5‘5@}\”‘9
e sl (5]
Signature/Dafe: -)7 !‘{0 {g{/(’%ﬂé[ 1k l 1 [1 ((/ ]
[Status: Routed | | Date Created: 06/09/2016 1

TITLE:
Contract No. 1SEK-120 Traction Power Substation Replacement, ASL/KTE Installatwn,

Change Order 2, Early Termination of Contract

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 2, Early Termination of Contract, to
Contract No. 15EK-120, Traction Power Substation Replacement, ASL/KTE Installation, for a payment of

$855,051.

DISCUSSION:

On December 4, 2014, the Board authorized the award of Contract No. 15EK-120 in the amount of
$4,456,400 to install traction power substations at San Leandro Station and the Transbay Tube East
Transition Structure to Aldridge Electric, Inc. (Aldridge). The substation equipment was to be supplied by
Powell Electrical Systems, Inc. (Powell).

Contract Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued on April 13, 2015, and equipment was to be delivered by
Powell to the first site, San Leandro Station, on October 10, 2015 to be installed by Aldridge. Quality
problems with rectifiers and rectifier-transformers delayed the equipment delivery. Mitigation of quality
problems is still on-going, and acceptance of Powell equipment for ASL and KTE has been postponed unil
the root causes of the quality problems are identified and resolved.

Aldridge indicated that they would file delay claims of $2,822.74 per calendar day due to the delayed
equipment deliveries. Resolution and mitigation of the quality problems is still ongoing, so the District
cannot foresee when additional equipment will be delivered. Staff therefore determined that the most
economical course is fo terminate Contract No. 15EK-120 pursuant to General Conditions Article GC8.9
(Termination for Convenience of the District) and, instead, use new contracts to install the equipment when
equipment delivery dates are known.

The District notified Aldridge of Termination for Convenience of the District on December 18, 2015,
Aldridge has been paid $141,949 for work performed through October 31, 2015. The value of materials
bought that will be delivered to the District is approximately $100,000. Claims by Aldridge to terminate the
Contract that have been agreed to by the District are $755,051. The amount of Change Order No. 2,



includes the value of the materials to be delivered to the District and the amounts agreed to in response to
Aldridge’s claims, for a total value of $855,051.

The District has recourse against Powell for approximately $600,000 in Liquidated Damages as well as
amounts associated with claims due to delay of other contractors associated with late deliveries of ASL
and KTE substation equipment, and will pursue these claims against Powell.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order as to form, and the Procurement
Department will review the Change Order for compliance with the District's procurement guidelines, prior to
execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $755,051 for claims by Aldridge to terminate Contract 15EK-120 in project 15EK350 - Traction
Power Substation Replacement, ASL/KTE Installation - will be paid using BART capital reserve (Fund
8529) and that could be partly offset later by BART's liquidated damages claim against Powell for delay
associated with late deliveries of ASL and KTE substation equipment. Remaining funds now committed to
Contract No. 15EK-120 will be decommitted in BART's financial management system due to Change Order
No. 2 and returned to project reserve. The net impact to BART reserve will be $155,051.

' ALTERNATIVE:

The Board can elect not to authorize the General Manager to approve' Change Order No. 2. In such a
case, the District would incur larger claims by Aldridge due to late equipment delivery that could not be
recouped from the Supplier. '

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend that the Board approve the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 2, Early Termination of Contract to
Contract No. 15EK-120, Traction Power Substation Replacement, ASL/KTE Installation, for an amount not
exceed $855,051.

Contract No. 15EK-120 Traction Power Substation Replacement, ASL/KTE Installation, Change Order 2, Early Termir



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors - DATE: June 17,2016
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: E&O Item #6.E: Draft Policy for Enforcement of Ordinance No. 2016-1,
Prohibiting Patrons from Utilizing More Than One Seat during Commute Hours —
For Information

At the April 14, 2016 Board of Directors meeting, the Board passed a resolution that prohibits
patrons within train cars from utilizing more than one seat during the weekday commute hours
(Ordinance No. 2016-1). At that time, BART Police Department (BPD) staff was asked to bring
back a draft policy for discussion with the Board, which describes how BPD would enforce the
Ordinance, before any enforcement action is taken.

Attached is the proposed BPD internal draft policy, which describes how BPD officers will
enforce Ordinance 2016-1. Staff will also discuss the outreach efforts planned to inform the
public about this new policy. If you have any questions, please contact Chief Kenton Rainey at
(510) 464-7022.

UA “" lr' 2

Grace Crunican

Attachment

cc: Board of Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



BART POLICE DEPARTMENT
KENTON W. RAINEY, CHIEF OF POLICE

PATROL BUREAU ORDER NO 16-
DATE OF ISSUE:

ONE TICKET/ONE SEAT ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This Patrol Bureau Order details enforcement of the One Ticket/One Seat Ordinance (2016-1), passed
by the BART Board of Directors on April 14, 2016. Increased ridership and an aging infra-structure have
challenged the BART System’s ability to meet the demand for seating in train cars, particularly during
commute hours. Further aggravating this demand has been the use of multiple seats, by single individuals
who block unoccupied seats by lying down, stretching feet out, or storing items. This inconsiderate behavior
has caused friction and conflict between patrons and added dissatisfaction with the BART System.

OBJECTIVE

During week day commute hours, defined in the ordinance as 6:00am-10:00am and 3:00pm-
7:30pm, trains frequently operate at crush-load capacity. In order to ensure maximum seating
and train occupancy, BART Police personnel shall begin enforcing the BART Ordinance 2016-1
on September 1, 2016. In general, and absent any additional criminal activity or wants,
enforcement will be conducted in the manner described in this bulletin. In doing so, personnel
will remain cognizant of the impact to train service while enforcing this ordinance; planning
ahead and executing enforcement activity in order to minimize that impact.

ENFORCEMENT PROCECDURES

When enforcing this ordinance, at any level, personnel should evaluate individuals potentially in
need of service through the Department’s CIT Community Outreach Coordinator and provide
them with a Community Services and Mental Health Resource Card. The CIT Community
Outreach Consultant may be contacted by cell phone at (510) 821-0471, or by email at
ASando2@BART.gov.

Verbal Warning

When an officer contacts an individual in violation of BART Ordinance 2016-1 for the first time,
the officer first must verbally advise the individual of the law and request that the individual
remove any obstruction to unoccupied seats. This is considered a verbal warning. The person shall be
detained for the violation, a field interrogation card will be completed, and the person will be checked
for outstanding warrants or court orders via dispatch. If the person complies with the law, and
no other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the officer shall take no further action.

If the person refuses to comply with the law after being told to do so, the individual
shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(1).



Warning Citation and Release

Individuals observed in violation of BART Ordinance 2016-1 on a second occasion shall be
detained for the violation and checked for outstanding warrants, court orders and verification
via dispatch the individual has received a prior verbal warning.

If the person has received a verified prior verbal warning, officers should issue a warning
citation for BART Ordinance 2016-1. If other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the
person may be placed under arrest.

If the person refusesto comply with the law after being issued a warning
citation, the individual shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(l).

Citation and Release

If the person has received a prior verbal warning and has been issued a warning citation that
has been verified via dispatch, officers should issue a citation for BART Ordinance 2016-1. If
other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the person may be placed under arrest.

If the person refusesto comply with the law after being issued a citation, the
individual shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(1).

Physical Arrest

Individuals who have been given a prior verbal warning, a warning citation, and a citation for
BART Ordinance 2016-1, have demonstrated a reasonable likelihood the offense
will continue or resume. These individuals should be taken into custody under Penal Code
853.6(i)7.

SERVICE REFERRALS

In keeping with the BART Police Department Core Values and community policing philosophy,
individuals who are determined to be homeless or in need during enforcement of
BART Ordinance 2016-1 are to be offered assistance in obtaining services. If the individual
accepts services, the officer(s) should attempt to contact the BART Police CIT Community
Outreach Coordinator.

Officers are reminded to review and maintain an awareness of Department Policy #467
(Homeless Persons).

Kenton W. Rainey
Chief of Police



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 17,2016
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: PPAAL Agenda Item #6.A: Systemwide Bicycle Program Update — For
Information

At the June 23rd Board meeting, staff will provide the Board with an update on current bike
program activities and plans. The enclosed presentation uses 2015 Station Profile data to
examine bike access at the station level, projects bike access mode share to 2022 and provides
recommendations on investments that will encourage and accommodate the projected demand.

Attachment

cc: Board of Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



EAECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to the Board

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary BARC

b
i et
:’?W‘gﬁﬁi 4 L] QO\“’ 3\% [

|Status: Routed |Date Created: 05/03/2016 N
TITLE: ‘ S

West Oakland Station Development — Extension of Exclusive Negotiating Agreement

NARRATIVE:
PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization to extend the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with
China Harbour Engineering Company, Ltd. for development at the West Oakland BART Station
through June 30, 2017.

DISCUSSION: On December 4, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager
or her designee to enter into Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) with China Harbour
Engineering Company, Ltd. (CHEC), for development at the West Oakland BART Station, for a

“period of twelve months. The Board directed that at the end of the twelve months, staff report to
the Board on the progress of the project for consideration of extension of the ENA for an
additional twelve months. On May 12, 2015, the ENA was executed and CHEC paid the District
an ENA fee of $25,000.

During the twelve-month term of the ENA, CHEC accomplished the following:

Developed an Engagement Plan

Conducted a community outreach effort
Conducted market and feasibility research
Held three well attended community meetings
Developed an architectural conceptual design

CHEC expects to accomplish the following over the course of the next twelve to twenty-four
months: ‘

Create and lead a West Oakland Station Development Advisory Council

Prepare an Access Study including development of a Parking Replacement Strategy
Draft Schematic Design Plans

Draft and finalize a Term Sheet

Secure project entitlements from the City of Oakland and complete CEQA requirements

As noted in the Request for Developer Qualifications for the West Oakland Station, the District
strongly encourages the maximum consideration of office and retail uses for the property, which




would support ridership growth where and when the system has capacity and contribute to the
vibrancy of the area. CHEC’s conceptual design includes housing as well as office and retail
uses.

If the extension is approved by the Board, and negotiations with CHEC proceed dlhgently during
the initial ENA extension period, staff anticipates that, prior to the expiration of the extension
period, it will request authority to extend the ENA for an additional twelve-month period. Any
proposed agreement for development that results from negotiations will be brought back to the
Board for approval. :

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the ENA amendment authorizing the extension
as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT: CHEC will pay the District $25,000 for the extension of the ENA. That
amount is intended to cover consultant costs and outside counsel fees associated with the
negotiation of a potential Option Agreement. In addition, any negotiated Option Agreement will
- require CHEC to reimburse BART for all reasonable outside counsel expenses incurred during
subsequent negotiations.

ALTERNATIVES: Do not authorize extension of the ENA with CHEC. If the extension is not
authorized, direction would be required as to whether and how negotiations would continue.

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION: The General Manager or her designee is authorized to extend the Exclusive
Negotiating Agreement (ENA) with China Harbour Engineering Company, Ltd., for development

at the West Oakland BART Station for a period through June 30, 2017.

West Oakland Station Development - Extension of Exclusive Negotiating Agreement . 2



ba
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

IG L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
M Approve and Forward to the Board

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
@\So

Originator/Prepared by: Sean Brooks General Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary »L
Dept: Real Estate and Property Development J @9 \y“’
x.6114 6 " l J} ia uSé IN)
— ) |7 0o
ignature/Date: [ ] é«/ [ ] [ 1

TILE,

Adoption of Findings, Staiten‘;/e;t of Overridding Considerations, and Mitigation
Monitoring Reporting Plan relating to the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development,
Approval of the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development and Delegation of
Authority to General Manager to approve changes to the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented
Development under certain circumstances

NARRATIVE:
Purpose:

To have the Board of Directors: 1) review the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan Final EIR
(“Final EIR"), which consists of the Draft Environmental Impact Report and responses to
comments on environmental issues and modifications to the Draft EIR, prepared by the City of
Millbrae (“City”), and adopt Findings, a Statement of Overriding Considerations ("SOC"), and a
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Plan ("MMRP") relating to the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented
Development, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), 2) approve
the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented Development as described in the Final EIR, and 3) Delegate
to the General Manager the authority to approve changes to the Millbrae BART Transit Oriented
Development under certain circumstances .

Discussion:

On February 14, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized staff to enter into an exclusive
negotiating agreement (“ENA”) with Republic Millbrae LLC (“RUP”) regarding transit oriented
development on BART property located in the City of Millbrae at the BART Station and identified
in the EIR as the TOD #2 Plan Area (“Project” or “TOD #2 Project”). The 18-month ENA was
extended for the site on October 19, 2014 for another 18 months and, most recently, on April 14,
2016 for an additional 12 months.

During this time, staff from BART, RUP and Millbrae have worked to achieve Project goals and
have modified the development plan by increasing commercial and residential density, added
affordable housing and a hotel, reduced and unbundled parking, and facilitated station access
mode shift.

The Project site is located in an area that is the subject of the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan
("MSASP”). The MSASP analyzed a mix of uses that includes office, restaurant/retail,
residential, and hospitality. The MSASP is intended to “provide the vision and strategies to
guide in the creation of Millbrae’s new economic center, including vibrant, diverse and
sustainable transit oriented developments at and around the station.” The related Final EIR
serves as a program-level level document that analyzes the potential impacts of adopting and
implementing the MSASP and its buildout potential, along with the associated General Plan and
Zoning amendments. The Final EIR also serves as a project-level document that analyzes the



Adoption of Environmental Documents related to Millbrae BART TOD

potential impacts of constructing and operating the TOD #2 Project.

The Draft MSASP and related Draft EIR were circulated on June 24, 2015. The public comment
period closed on August 10, 2015. On January 12, 2016, the City Council certified the Final EIR
and on February 9, 2016 adopted the MSASP. The City did not adopt Findings, an SOC, or an
MMRP for the TOD #2 project.

BART is a “responsible agency” under CEQA for the TOD #2 Project. As a responsible agency,
BART must consider the Final EIR prepared by the City and reach its own conclusions regarding
- the adequacy of those portions of the EIR relating to the TOD #2 Project. BART staff has
reviewed the Final EIR as certified by the City and has prepared Findings, an SOC, and an
MMRP which are attached here as Attachments A, B, and C respectively. S

Since the adoption of the Final EIR, RUP has worked with BART to provide more affordable
housing in the Project, in the form of veteran-preference housing. RUP submitted its Site
Development Plan to the City of Millorae on March 21, 2016 and is currently working with the
City to address comments on the site plan. This change may or may not impact the
environmental analysis contained in the EIR. Because vehicular trip generation is likely to be
lower with the added veteran-preference housing component, it is possible that the proposed
changes will not result in any new significant environmental effects not considered in the Final
EIR or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.

Staff is requesting that the BART Board of Directors adopt a motion that would adopt Findings,
SOC, and MMRP for the TOD #2 Project prepared by BART and make certain findings

regarding the EIR. The motion would also approve the TOD #2 Project and delegate authority to
the General Manager or her designee to approve or disapprove any modifications to the TOD #2
Project from what was contained in the Final EIR’s Project Description, based upon the General
Manager or her designee’s determination that appropriate environmental analysis of the
madifications has been performed by the City of Millbrae, and provided that said environmental
analysis concludes that the modifications will not result in any new significant environmental
effects not considered in the Final EIR or a substantial increase in the severity of previously -
identified significant effects.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact from the proposed action.
Alternatives:

If the BART Board determines that evidence of CEQA compliance is inadequate, additional
analysis would be required to address any deficiencies identified by the Board.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the following motion be adopted.
Motion:

After review and consideration of the Final EIR certified by the City of Millbrae on February 9,
2016, the Board: 1) Adopts the Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program for the TOD #2 Project, 2) Finds that changes or alterations
have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which mitigate or avoid significant effects
on the environment, 3) Finds that for the significant and unavoidable effects of the TOD #2
Project identified in the Final EIR, specific economic, legal, social, technological or other
considerations make mitigation measures or alternatives identified in the EIR infeasible and
specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological or other benefits of the project outweigh



Adoption of Environmental Documents related to Millorae BART TOD

the significant effects on the environment, as identified in the Final EIR and the Statement of
Overriding Considerations, 4) Approves the TOD #2 Project, and 5) delegates to the General
Manager or her designee the decision to approve or disapprove any modifications to the TOD #2
Project as described in the Project Description contained in the Final EIR, based upon the
General Manager or her designee’s determination that appropriate environmental analysis of
such modifications has been performed by the City of Millbrae as lead agency pursuant to
CEQA, and that such environmental analysis concludes that the modifications will not result in
any new significant environmental effects not considered in the Final EIR or a substantial
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 17,2016
FROM: Director, District 7

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 10A: Supplemental Funding for West Contra Costa High-Capacity
Transit Study

At the June 23, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors, I intend request that funding be allocated
to supplement the West Contra Costa High-Capacity Transit Study (HTS) so that a BART
alternative in the study can advance to the next phase of the study.

The West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) is the lead agency for
the study.

Background ,
As part of the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget, the Board of Directors allocated $300,000 towards

the HTS, a study funded cooperatively by five partner agencies as follows:
e Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) ($300,000)
e Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) ($100,000)
e San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) ($300,000)
e West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) ($400,000,
including $100,000 in contingency)

The goal of the HTS is to identify which one or combination of high-capacity transit
investment(s) can best serve high-demand travel markets and corridors in West Contra Costa
County that are currently underserved by viable high-capacity transit options. The initial
alternatives for the study included the following:
e Alternative 1: Expanded express bus service
Alternative 2: Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) via San Pablo Avenue/Macdonald Avenue
Alternative 3: Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) via 23" Street
Alternative 4: Commuter Rail via Union Pacific (UP) Railroad
Alternative 5: Commuter Rail via Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) Railroad
Alternative 6: BART Extension from Richmond Station via Rumrill Boulevard/
Interstate 80
Alternative 7A: BART Extension from El Cerrito del Norte Station via Interstate 80
e Alternative 7B: Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) service from El Cerrito del Norte Station
via Interstate 80

[:]

Thus far, the study has mainly developed background information about the existihg and planned
transportation network; current travel markets for travel to, from, and through West Contra Costa



County; current and planned land-uses in the area; and a preliminary screening of the above
alternatives based on these considerations and other mostly qualitative metrics.

Purpose of Request

The HTS recently reached a benchmark in which a limited number of the aforementioned
alternatives were advanced for a more rigorous and quantitative evaluation that will include, but
not be limited to, ridership modeling/forecasting, more defined capital cost estimating, and
gathering public feedback. Due in part to funding constraints, the number of alternatives that
were advanced was limited to four (4) alternatives and included the three bus alternatives —
Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 — and a single BART alternative, Alternative 6.

One of the other BART alternatives, Alternative 7A, remains a competitive candidate in this
study, but limited funding did not allow for it to be advanced. The consultant for the study, in
concert with WCCTAC staff, advises that adding Alternative 7A to the study would cost up to an
additional $125,000, including $30,000 in contingency funds.

In order to ensure that this study thoroughly and competitively evaluates all viable options so
that the best investment(s) for the corridor can ultimately be advanced towards implementation, I
am seeking to supplement the study to support adding Alternative 7A to the second phase of the
alternatives evaluation.

The attachment to this memorandum summarizes the alignment and qualitative cost-benefit
differences between Alternative 6 and Alternative 7A.

Proposed Motion

The General Manager or her designee is directed and authorized to coordinate with the West
Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee to financially supplement the West Contra
Costa High-Capacity Transit Study for the purpose of adding Alternative 7A, as defined by the
study, to the second phase of the alternatives evaluation. These funds, which are not to exceed
$125,000, are to be limited in use to costs that are attributable to adding Alternative 7A to the
second phase of the alternatives evaluation.

Zakhary Mallett

Attachment



ATTACHMENT

SUMMARY OF ALIGNMENT AND QUALITATIVE COST-BENEFIT DIFFERENCES
BETWEEN ALTERNATIVE 6 AND ALTERNATIVE 7A

Alternative 6

Alternative 6 would extend BART from the existing Richmond Station via Rumrill Boulevard to
San Pablo Avenue, and then transition to a tunnel alignment under Hilltop Mall before linking
with Interstate 80 near Richmond Parkway for the remainder of the extension. Potential stops
include a stop in the vicinity of either Hilltop Mall or Contra Costa College, a stop in Pinole near
Appian Way, and a terminus in Hercules at either Highway 4/Sycamore Avenue or Willow
Avenue. The length of this extension is estimated to be eight (8) miles.

This alternative would likely result in both the Richmond to/from Fremont and Richmond
to/from San Francisco/Millbrae routes being extended to all stations north, resulting in a
combined frequency of between six (6) and ten (10) minutes (after train control modernization)
along the extension when both routes are in operation. Depending on the final stations selected,
this alternative also has the potential to more directly serve a local community college (Contra
Costa College) and a higher density area of West Contra Costa County (Central San Pablo). Of
the BART alternatives, this alternative is also the most consistent with Richmond’s General Plan
that explicitly refers to both of BART’s Richmond-based routes serving the Downtown area.

At the same time, this alignment results in a circuitous route that would add 5 minutes and 2.8
miles (a fare impact) to any customer traveling from locations north of Richmond when
compared to Alternative 7A and fails to capture populations central and east of Interstate 80
between El Cerrito and Pinole. In addition, the existing proposal calls for BART running as an
aerial structure along Rumrill Boulevard, posing either environmental sound and visual impacts
to the local community or increased construction costs for mitigating them — likely through
tunneling. This alternative also has potential of reducing the performance of the Downtown
Richmond BART Station — currently the eleventh lowest performing station in the BART system
— because residents of north/central San Pablo and North Richmond who currently find the
Downtown Richmond Station to be the most accessible would potentially find a station in
Central San Pablo to be more accessible.

The preliminary cost estimate for Alternative 6 is $2.453 billion.

Alternative 7A

Alternative 7A would involve extending BART from the El Cerrito del Norte Station via
Interstate 80 to Hercules with potential stops near San Pablo Dam Road, in the vicinity of Hilltop
Drive/Hilltop Mall/Richmond Parkway, in Pinole near Appian Way, and in Hercules at either
Highway 4/Sycamore Avenue or Willow Avenue. The length of this extension is estimated to be
7.5 miles.

Compared to Alternative 6, Alternative 7A provides the most direct alignment to the northern
communities of West Contra Costa County and, although it doesn’t directly serve one of the
densest areas in the corridor, it more centrally serves the corridor and its development patterns



overall and is the most accessible for attracting automobile traffic. This alternative also relies
more on state-owned right-of-way and property acquisitions compared to Alternative 6 that has a
higher share of private property acquisitions for its implementation.

However, while both Alternative 6 and Alternative 7A cross the Hayward Fault, Alternative 7A
also goes through an area known to have loose soil, posing increased engineering costs. This
alternative would also require the construction of either a new yard near Hercules — although that
may be unavoidable in the very long-term should BART ever be extended further north —or a
wye north of the El Cerrito del Norte Station so that the Richmond yard can be directly accessed
from locations north. Finally, Alternative 7A would split service north of the El Cerrito del
Norte Station with either BART’s Fremont route or San Francisco/Millbrae route going to
Richmond and the other going to Hercules, thereby requiring BART service between West
Contra Costa County and San Francisco/Millbrae to become a fulltime service. The net effect of
this is that all locations north of the El Cerrito del Norte Station would experience a base
frequency no less than twelve (12) minutes (after train control modernization), while all locations
between El Cerrito del Norte and 12" Street/Oakland City Center Stations would experience
frequency improvements with combined frequency from these two routes during all BART
operating hours. Lastly, due to the Richmond Station having a reduction in service under this
alternative, Alternative 7A has the potential of posing a Title VI impact on those who access
BART via the Richmond Station. Further study would be required to determine whether a Title
VI impact is indeed created with this alternative, including whether the populations served by the
extension would mitigate those impacts.

The preliminary cost estimate for Alternative 7A is $2.465 billion.

For additional information about these and other alternatives and the study overall, visit the study
website at www.westcountytransitstudy.com.




STOZ "WIOH-A3fwily pup [foyiayaulig suosiby | dsa raainos

S BAE ROy
LR ISR PHTR

Yrgs

¢
i
t
i
|
i
i

9 JALLVNYA LTV




STOZ ‘WIOH-A3juity pup [foiayaulig suosing | dSi 1a2inos

SN

A el b

IR PR
I8 EFLRG S

S
ik &
sE?}S,, ﬁ..,s%iawa

VL HALLVNYALTY



ALTERNATIVE 6

L) BART restties i rontls levaniviss ot

and Farkway
R

P.‘u.v_:éém&i.:n@?.ﬁ,,,
the ey of Hiflog ek

£ Hureadig Traned Sattar

New Transii Services and Facilities

LoRT Exnnsnn

Froposac 3aten

%

&3

Source: WSP | Parsons Brinckerhoff and Kimley-Horn,

2015




STOZ "wiop-Aajwiy pup ffoyiaysulg suosind | dsm :321nos

- @2 R S, S %%%

LOIENS | MV g BE ey
PR SMUILA) M0l s eng

*.

EREGRERATT SR §
Fip) LHBY] SR LIRG, IS MRS
Y CONB0E DORES ABUIRDS LY

Sy et

SRR TR 1RUS

i

RIS WG SR ] 0E

AR U 2 Ktese e
Logeuny e Aaoaruay
> oL BN e e

[ITRSRS QR R E T BRI T

FE ARSI VRIE &

i '
SRR PR
SEaBd DUSL Y

Tl

SHUDTY PNUEL] SRRINDH
10 EULAT RS WRILION

VL HALLVNYALTV



	Packet 1
	Packet 2


BART POLICE DEPARTMENT
KENTON W. RAINEY, CHIEF OF POLICE

PATROL BUREAU ORDER NO 16-
DATE OF ISSUE:

ONE TICKET/ONE SEAT ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This Patrol Bureau Order details enforcement of the One Ticket/One Seat Ordinance (2016-1), passed
by the BART Board of Directors on April 14, 2016. Increased ridership and an aging infra-structure have
challenged the BART System’s ability to meet the demand for seating in train cars, particularly during
commute hours. Further aggravating this demand has been the use of multiple seats, by single individuals
who block unoccupied seats by lying down, stretching feet out, or storing items. This inconsiderate behavior
has caused friction and contlict between patrons and added dissatisfaction with the BART System.

OBJECTIVE

During week day commute hours, defined in the ordinance as 6:00am-10:00am and 3:00pm-
7:30pm, trains frequently operate at crush-load capacity. In order to ensure maximum seating
and train occupancy, BART Police personnel shall begin enforcing the BART Ordinance 2016-1
on September 1, 2016. In general, and absent any additional criminal activity or wants,
enforcement will be conducted in the manner described in this bulletin. In doing so, personnel
will remain cognizant of the impact to train service while enforcing this ordinance; planning
ahead and executing enforcement activity in order to minimize that impact.

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES

When enforcing this ordinance, at any level, personnel should evaluate individuals potentially in
need of service through the Department’s CIT Community Outreach Coordinator and provide
them with a Community Services and Mental Health Resource Card. The CIT Community
Outreach Consultant may be contacted by cell phone at (510) 821-0471, or by email at
ASando2@BART.gov.

Verbal Warning

When an officer contacts an individual in violation of BART Ordinance 2016-1 for the first time,
the officer first must verbally advise the individual of the law and request that the individual
remove any obstruction to unoccupied seats. This is considered a verbal warning. The person shall be
detained for the violation, a field interrogation card will be completed, and the person will be checked
for outstanding warrants or court orders via dispatch. If the person complies with the law, and
no other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the officer shall take no further action.

If the person refuses to comply with the law after being told to do so, the individual
shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(1).





Warning Citation and Release

Individuals observed in violation of BART Ordinance 2016-1 on a second occasion shall be
detained for the violation and checked for outstanding warrants, court orders and verification
via dispatch the individual has received a prior verbal warning.

If the person has received a verified prior verbal warning, officers should issue a warning
citation for BART Ordinance 2016-1. If other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the
person may be placed under arrest.

If the person refusesto comply with the law after being issued a warning
citation, the individual shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(l).

Citation and Release

If the person has received a prior verbal warning and has been issued a warning citation that
has been verified via dispatch, officers should issue a citation for BART Ordinance 2016-1. If
other criminal violations or wants are discovered, the person may be placed under arrest.

If the person refusesto comply with the law after being issued a citation, the
individual shall be placed under arrest under Penal Code 148(a)(l).

Physical Arrest

Individuals who have been given a prior verbal warning, a warning citation, and a citation for
BART Ordinance 2016-1, have demonstrated a reasonable likelihood the offense
will continue or resume. These individuals should be taken into custody under Penal Code
853.6(1)7.

SERVICE REFERRALS

In keeping with the BART Police Department Core Values and community policing philosophy,
individuals who are determined to be homeless or in need during enforcement of
BART Ordinance 2016-1 are to be offered assistance in obtaining services. If the individual
accepts services, the officer(s) should attempt to contact the BART Police CIT Community
Outreach Coordinator.

Officers are reminded to review and maintain an awareness of Department Policy #467
(Homeless Persons).

Kenton W. Rainey
Chief of Police






Bicycle Program Update
June 2016

Bicycle Parking

- e
N
[==]
BART Station
-l

Customer Access, June 2016






2012 BART Bicycle Plan |
Double access from 4% to 8% by 2022

Bike Plan Strategies Where We’ve Focused
3o Jo o Jo K

Improve Station Circulation O‘:O
Provide Plentiful Secure Parking Oﬂ‘.'o O{'O O{'O O{'O

Optimize Bike Accommodations On Board oﬁ'@ O¢O OQ'O O¢O

Complement Policies and Facilities with

| do
Persuasive Programs

Improve Access Beyond BART Boundaries O¢O

Customer Access, June 2016 1





Trends

Bike Access to BART

7.0%

6.0%

5.0%

»
3
S

Bike Access
w
Q
S

2.0%

2.3%

1.0% 33% more bike access trips
D

0.0%
2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2015

Year

Customer Access, June 2016 2





Trends

Bike Access Mode Share by Station

Top Ten Bike Access Stations In 2015

Lake Merritt
19th St. Oakland
MacArthur
West Oakland
North Berkeley

Customer Access, June 2016

14.8%
14.3%
14.0%
12.2%
11.9%

Ashby
Fruitvale
16th St. Mission
San Leandro

Castro Valley

11.1%
10.9%
10.0%
9.1%
9.0%





19th St. Oakland
West Oakland
Castro Valley
Lake Merritt

San Leandro

Customer Access, June 2016

Trends
Largest Mode Share Increases

In Bike Access

6.2%

4.8%

1.9%

8.2%

2.6%

14.3%

12.2%

9.0%

14.8%

9.1%

MacArthur
Montgomery St.
Coliseum
16th St. Mission

Powell St.

8.2%

1.3%

0.5%

5.4%

2.0%

14.0%

6.8%

5.3%

10.0%

6.2%





Trends BART
Parked vs Onboard

Varies Significantly by Station

19th St. Oakland 53% | 16th St. Mission 5%
Smaller percentage parked

2008 40% El Cerrito Plaza  50% | 24th St. Mission 6%

Q 2015 25% Pleasant Hill 49% |Pittsburg/Bay Point 8%

| Higher percentage onboard Wall;ll;tr;reek 42% Richmond 8%
2008 = 60%

Concord/Martinez 41% San Bruno 10%

VS

2015 = 75%

i

Customer Access, June 2016 5





2022 Projections
Home to BART Trips

2015 Total = 433,000 6.4%
Home to BART = 195,000 ~13,000 Home to BART
= 0}
2022 Total = 466,000 10%

Home to BART = 210,000 ~ 21,000 Home to BART

Customer Access, June 2016





2022 Projections--Home to BART |C“I:“IT

Top 10 Stations

19th St. Oakland 1,200 Balboa Park 900
West Oakland 1,200 16th St. Mission 800
MacArthur 1,200 San Leandro 800
Lake Merritt 1,000 24th St. Mission 750

Fruitvale 900 Dublin/Pleasanton 600

Customer Access, June 2016 7





Parking Expansion — By the
Numbers

21,000 Home to BART by 2022

w® . 8,700 per day

e .
NN (60% or double current—42% system-wide)
%Oaan
eo‘)(e
P et 3,000 spaces
A .
P@i(@\@ (~ $2,400 per space or $7 million)
%
Projected parking needs vary significantly by station
# stations # spaces # stations # spaces
3 300-400 6 50-100

9 100-200 25 10-50

Customer Access, June 2016





Moving Forward

Bike Program Capital Plan

Third Edition

New edition to focus on parking capacity
needs for 2022 (10% bike access, up to 60%
parked).

Recommendations by station will vary
depending on anticipated demand.

MINOR CAPITAL INVESTMENTS
Develop protocol for “monitor and install” based on annual occupancy audit

where use exceeds 85%.

MORE SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL INVESTMENT

1) Concept with site plans and renderings

2) Vet with stakeholders, revise as needed

3) Bring projects to “grant ready” stage (preliminary engineering/cost)

Customer Access, June 2016 9





Moving Forward

Secure Bike Parking Expansion

Funded

MacArthur, Concord, Pleasant Hill, Lafayette and
Downtown Berkeley Bike Stations, Walnut Creek
Bike Pavilion

Design Stage
Embarcadero (modernization), Lake
Merritt, Dublin/Pleasanton

Next Priorities to Move to Design Stage
San Leandro, 19t St (expansion),
West Oakland, Rockridge, North
Berkeley

Customer Access, June 2016 10





Moving Forward

Bikeep Demo

High Security Smart Racks

Demo to deploy 10 units at 16" Street
and 10 units at Pleasant Hill

Advantages:
High security—stronger than U locks
Smart card/Clipper compatible

Could deploy in paid area or concourse

Customer Access, June 2016 11





Moving Forward
Vertical Circulation—Escalators and

Stair Channels

New Escalator Signage System-wide

CHANNEL PRIORITIES:
-12th & 19t Street,
- Civic Center
- Coliseum
- Del Norte
" - Downtown Berkele
- Lake Merritt

Customer Access, June 2016 12





Moving Forward

BikeShare Expansion

Agreement executed between MTC and
Motivate to expand from 700 to 7,000 R
bikes.

Phase one of rollout with 25% of new

bikes including these BART stations:
16t Street  Dtwn. Berkeley Ashby

24t Street  MacArthur Lake Merritt
12t Street 19t Street

Roll out starts early 2017

Customer Access, June 2016 13





Moving Forward

Bike Space Improvements:
New cars and Bike Straps

Prototype Strap
Being Tested

Bike Space Option on
New Train Cars

Customer Access, June 2016 14





Moving Forward--Summary

« Continue to expand secure parking using Station Profile data
and projections to implement strategically

« Develop 2022 Capital Plan to meet 10% demand and identify
resources needed

 In addition to secure parking:

« BikeShare expansion

» Bike Space enhancements
_+ Stair channel capital program

Customer Access, June 2016 15






Attachment A
MILLBRAE STATION AREA SPECIFIC PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
FINDINGS RELATED TO SPECIFIC IMPACTS AND ALTERNATIVES
For TOD #2

CEQA Requirements

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a responsible agency under the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for purposes of the “Transit-Oriented
Development #2” (TOD # 2) Project as defined in the Final Environmental Impact Report
prepared by the City of Millbrae, as lead agency, for the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan
(EIR). Section 15096(f) of the State CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations)
requires a responsible agency to consider the environmental effects of the project as shown in the
EIR prior to reaching a decision on the project. A responsible agency is responsible for
mitigating or avoiding only the direct or indirect environmental effects of those parts of the
project which it decides to carry out, finance or approve. Section 15096(h) of the State CEQA
Guidelines requires a responsible agency to make the findings required by Section 15091 for
‘each significant effect of the project and, if necessary, to make the findings required by Section
15093. Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines states, in part:

(a) No public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been certified
which identifies one or more significant environmental effects of the project unless the
public agency makes one or more written findings for each of those significant effects,
accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale for each finding. The possible
findings are:

(1) Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which
avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the

final EIR.

(2) Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another
public agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been
adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

(3) Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including
provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible
the mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the final EIR.

(b) The findings required by subdivision (a) shall be supported by substantial evidence in the
record.

The changes or alterations referred to in the State CEQA Guidelines may be mitigation
measures, alternatives to the project, or changes to the project by the project proponent. The

1





Final EIR identifies mitigation measures that will reduce significant effects of the TOD # 2
Project or mitigate other potential effects that may not be, strictly speaking, environmental
effects under CEQA. These mitigation measures will be incorporated into the design of the TOD
# 2 Project. A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) will also be adopted to
ensure that the mitigation measures identified in the Final EIR applicable to the TOD #2 Project
and in these Findings will be implemented.

Findings Regarding Independent Review

Each member of the BART Board of Directors was provided a complete copy of the Final EIR as
certified by the City of Millbrae, as lead agency, on January 12, 2016. The BART Board of
Directors hereby finds that it has independently reviewed and considered the Final EIR prior to
taking final action with respect to the TOD # 2 Project.

Findings Regarding Significant and Unavoidable Effects

The BART Board of Directors determines that the following significant effects cannot be
avoided. Feasible mitigation measures included in the Final EIR may lessen the effects, but will
not result in complete mitigation of the effects to a less-than-significant level. The following
identifies the pertinent mitigation measures by number and summary title. The full text of each
of the mitigation measures cited below is found in the Final EIR and that text is hereby
incorporated by reference.

Air Quality

Impact AQ-TOD#2-1: Development of TOD #2 alone would not exceed the projected growth
increase for the City of Millbrae by year 2020 but, when combined with the development of
TOD #1, the two TOD projects would exceed the projected growth.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(3) (described above), as
required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines § 15091, with
respect to the identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: Both TOD #1 and TOD #2 would be consistent with the regional
planning objectives established for the Bay Area. The proposed TOD Projects are representative
of “smart growth” development that reflects better jobs-housing balance, increased preservation
of open space, and greater development and redevelopment in urban core and transit-accessible
areas throughout their region. TOD #2 would be required to comply with the Millbrae Station
Area Plan Specific Plan Update Circulation and Parking policies. These policies could
potentially reduce Vehicle-Miles-Traveled (VMT) and associated emissions impacts by
providing improved pedestrian, bicycle and transit, and transit-accessible areas throughout their
region. However, it cannot be assured that the reductions would sufficiently reduce the impact.

Impact AQ-TOD#2-2: Operational phase emissions associated with TOD #2 would exceed the
Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) regional operational-phase significance
thresholds for Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) and nitrogen oxide (NOx).





Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(3) (described above), as
required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091, with
respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: While compliance with the Specific Plan Update Circulation and
Parking policies listed in the Final EIR could result in VMT and associated emissions impacts in
the Millbrae Station Specific Plan Area by providing improved pedestrian, bicycle, and transit
opportunities for alternative modes of transportation, it cannot be assured that the reductions
would sufficiently reduce the impact. Since the operational phase emissions would exceed the
BAAQMD standards and no mitigation measures are available, this impact is significant and
unavoidable.

Impact AQ-TOD#2-3.1: Construction of the proposed TOD # 2 Project would result in
exceedance of BAAQMD'’s risk thresholds.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes findings (a)(1) and (a)(3) (described
above, as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: Adjacent sensitive land uses could be potentially impacted by
construction activities and cumulative emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs). Despite
implementation of mitigation, construction-related health impacts may still exceed the applicable
thresholds combined with emissions from TOD #1.

¢ AQ-TOD#2-3.1: Implement Mitigation Measures AQ-TOD#1-4.1a and AQ-TOD#1-4.1b

Impact AQ-TOD#2-3.2: Implementation of the proposed TOD # 2 Project would exceed
BAAQMD’s risk thresholds.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(3) (described above), as
required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091, with
respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: Emissions generated from the proposed TOD # 2 Project, when
considered with the emissions generated from the proposed TOD #1 Project would exceed
BAAQMD’s regional operational-phase significance thresholds for VOC and NOx. While
compliance with the Specific Plan Update circulation and Parking policies could potentially
reduce VMT and associated emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle, and transit and
opportunities for alternative modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the
reductions would sufficiently reduce the impact.

Impact AQ-TOD#2-4.1: Risk impacts to nearby sensitive receptors from construction of the
proposed TOD # 2 Project would exceed the cancer risk threshold of 10 in a million.
Additionally, risk impacts from construction of both the proposed TOD #1 and TOD #2 Project
concurrently would exceed the chancer risk and PM; s thresholds.





Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(3) (described above), as
required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091, with
respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: Mitigation Measures AQ-TOD #1-4.1a and AQ-TOD #1-4.1b
would reduce the proposed TOD #2 Project’s localized construction emissions. The mitigated
health risk values were calculated and are summarized in the Final EIR, Table 4.2-18. The results
indicate that with mitigation, the excess cancer risk determined using the 2015 Health Risk
Assessment (HRA) guidance of the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment
(OEHHA) to be 9.1 in a million for off-site residents and would be less than the threshold value.
In addition, the mitigated cancer risks determined using the 2003 OEHHA HRA guidance for the
adult and child exposure scenarios would also be less than the threshold values. Consequently,
construction activities associated only with the proposed TOD # 2 Project would not expose
sensitive receptors to substantial concentrations of air pollutant emissions during construction.
However, when considered with the proposed TOD #1 Project, the combined construction
activities associated with both the proposed TOD #1 and TOD #2 Projects would still result in
causing an exceedance of the cancer risk threshold at off-site sensitive receptors.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-15.1: The proposed TOD #2 Project would add traffic to intersection
34 El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue and would cause this intersection to degrade from LOS D
to LOS E in the AM peak hour and would add more than five (5) seconds of delay in the PM
peak hour (currently operating at LOS E), resulting in LOS F under Existing (2014) Plus Project
(TOD #2) conditions. The worsening of traffic conditions at this location is due primarily to the
increase in traffic from the TOD # 2 Project using El Camino Real as a regional and local access
point.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The modification to the El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue
intersection under Policy CP 26 requires the City to work with Caltrans to modify the existing El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue intersection footprint through restriping. However,
implementation of Policy CP-26 may not be feasible due to the City’s lack of authority to
independently implement (the intersection is under Caltrans jurisdiction). Although the
modification is physically feasible, it is legally infeasible. While compliance with the Specific
Plan Update circulation and Parking policies could potentially reduce VMT and associated
“emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle, and transit and opportunities for alternative
modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would
sufficiently reduce the impact.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-15.2: The proposed TOD #2 Project would result in the addition of
traffic to intersection #4 El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue causing this intersection to degrade
from LOS D to LOS E in the AM peak hour and would add more than five (5) seconds of delay
in the PM peak hour (operating at LOS F under baseline), resulting in LOS F under Near Term
(2020) Plus Project (TOD #2) conditions. The worsening of traffic conditions at this location is





due primarily to the increase in traffic from the TOD # 2 Project using EI Camino Real as a
regional and local access point.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The modification to the El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue
intersection under Policy CP 26 requires the City to work with Caltrans to modify the existing El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue intersection footprint through restriping. However,
implementation of Policy CP-26 may not be feasible due to the City’s lack of authority to
independently implement (the intersection is under Caltrans jurisdiction). Although the
modification is physically feasible, it is legally infeasible. While compliance with the Specific
Plan Update circulation and Parking policies could potentially reduce VMT and associated
emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle, and transit and opportunities for alternative
modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would

sufficiently reduce the impact.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-15.3: The proposed TOD #2 Project would add traffic to intersection
44 ]l Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue, which is expected to operate at LOS E during the AM peak
hour and at LOS F during the PM peak hour under Cumulative (2040) No Project (TOD #2)
conditions. Traffic added by the proposed TOD #2 Project would increase vehicle delay at this

intersection by more than five (5) seconds in the AM and PM peak hours under Cumulative

(2040) Plus Project (TOD #2) conditions and result in the intersection operating at LOS F.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The modification to the El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue
intersection under Policy CP 26 requires the City to work with Caltrans to modify the existing El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue intersection footprint through restriping. However,
implementation of Policy CP-26 may not be feasible due to the City’s lack of authority to
independently implement (the intersection is under Caltrans jurisdiction). Although the
modification is physically feasible, it is legally infeasible. While compliance with the Specific
Plan Update circulation and Parking policies could potentially reduce VMT and associated
emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle, and transit and opportunities for alternative
modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would

sufficiently reduce the impact.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-15.4: The proposed TOD #2 Project would result in the addition of
traffic to intersection #8 Rollins Road/Millbrae Avenue and would cause this intersection to
degrade from LOS D to LOS E in the AM and PM peak hours under Cumulative (2040) Plus
Project (TOD #2) conditions.





Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(3) (described above), as
required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091, with
respect to the above identified effect. :

Facts in Support of Findings: Implementation of mitigation at the #8 Rollins Road/Millbrae
Avenue intersection would require significant intersection expansion, even greater than that
required at the intersection of El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue. The expanded intersection
footprint would add one eastbound and one westbound through lane (for a total of four in each
direction) as well as left and right turn pocket lanes, in close proximity to the station entrance.
This measure is considered infeasible due to the adverse secondary impacts to pedestrians and/or
encroachment into private property. Furthermore, while future projects would be required to
comply with the Specific Plan Update Circulation and Parking policies listed above, which, as
previously stated, could potentially reduce VMT and vehicle congestion in the Specific Plan
Area by providing improved pedestrian, bicycle and transit and opportunities for alternative
modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would
sufficiently reduce the impact. Accordingly, the level of service impacts at the Rollins
Road/Millbrae Avenue intersection would be significant and unavoidable.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-16: As discussed under TRANS-15, implementation of the proposed
TOD #2 Project would result in a significant impact at the CMP facilities during at least one (1)
of the peak hours under Existing (2014), Near Term (2020) and Cumulative (2040) conditions as
follows:

e El Camino Real/Millbraec Avenue — AM and PM peak hour Near Term (2020) Plus
Project (TOD #2)

e El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue — AM and PM peak hour Cumulative (2040) Plus
Project (TOD #2)

e El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue — AM and PM peak hours.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The modification to the El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue
intersection under Policy CP 26 requires the City to work with Caltrans to modify the existing El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue intersection footprint through restriping. However,
implementation of Policy CP-26 may not be feasible due to the City’s lack of authority to
independently implement (the intersection is under Caltrans jurisdiction). Although the
modification is physically feasible, it is legally infeasible. While compliance with the Specific
Plan Update circulation and Parking policies could potentially reduce VMT and associated
emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle, and transit and opportunities for alternative
modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would

sufficiently reduce the impact.





Impact TRANS-TOD#2-18: Queues that were already exceeding available storage space under
Existing (2014) conditions were exacerbated under Existing (2014) Plus Project (TOD #2)
conditions at and between the intersection of E1 Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue and Rollins
Road/Millbrae Avenue resulting in hazardous driving conditions from backed up traffic.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The modification to the El Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue
intersection under Policy CP 26 requires the City to work with Caltrans to modify the existing El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue intersection footprint through restriping. Modification of the
same intersection under Policy CP 30 requires the City of Millbrae to work with the City of
Burlingame to improve the intersection lane configurations as appropriate. However,
implementation of Policy CP-26 may not be feasible due to the City’s lack of authority to
independently implement. Although the modification is physically feasible, it is legally
infeasible. While compliance with the Specific Plan Update circulation and Parking policies
could potentially reduce VMT and associated emissions impact by providing pedestrian, bicycle,
and transit and opportunities for alternative modes of transportation for employees, it cannot be
assured that the reductions would sufficiently reduce the impact.

Implementation of mitigation at the #8 Rollins Road/Millbrae Avenue intersection would require
significant intersection expansion, even greater than that required at the intersection of El
Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue. The expanded intersection footprint would add one eastbound
and one westbound through lane (for a total of four in each direction) as well as left and right
turn pocket lanes, in close proximity to the station entrance. This measure is considered
infeasible due to the adverse secondary impacts to pedestrians and/or encroachment into private
property. Furthermore, while future projects would be required to comply with the Specific Plan
Update Circulation and Parking policies listed above, which, as previously stated, could
potentially reduce VMT and vehicle congestion in the Specific Plan Area by providing improved
pedestrian, bicycle and transit and opportunities for alternative modes of transportation for
employees, it cannot be assured that the reductions would sufficiently reduce the impact.
Accordingly, the level of service impacts at the Rollins Road/Millbrae Avenue intersection
would be significant and unavoidable.

Impact UTIL-TOD#2-1: Implementation of the proposed TOD #2 Project would not have
sufficient water supplies available to serve the TOD # 2 Project from existing entitlements and
resources during multiple dry years.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(2) and (a)(3) (described
above), as required by Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in CEQA Guidelines § 15091,
with respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The project applicant would be required to comply with Policy
UTIL 17, which requires the project applicant to prepare and submit a written statement that
clearly demonstrates how the project complies with the water conservation and water efficiency
ordinances adopted by the City of Millbrae and any other applicable regulations. In addition,





Policy UTIL 18 requires the City of Millbrae to work with the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission (SFPUC) to ensure that supplemental water supply sources for the 2035 buildout
year of the Plan are identified and developed by SFPUC. Supplemental water supply sources for
the 2020 buildout year of the proposed Specific Plan Update Project would be identified and
developed by SFPUC. As the 2010 UWMP is updated, supplemental water supply sources
beyond 2035 (the planning horizon of the current 2010 UWMP) will be quantified through
refined project developments in subsequent UWMPs (updated every five years). Therefore,
additional water supplies that would mitigate this impact will be developed by SFPUC. Because
SFPUC is the water service provider to the City of Millbrae and the entity that has the ability to
mitigate this impact, and because BART does not have jurisdiction over the development of new
water supplies, the BART Board of Directors cannot guarantee that additional water supplies will
be developed, so the impact is considered significant and unavoidable.





FINDINGS REGARDING SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS MITIGATED TO LESS-THAN-
SIGNIFICANT LEVELS

For TOD #2

The BART Board of Directors has determined that, for the following effects, mitigation
measures included in the Final EIR will mitigate the effects of the TOD #2 Project to a less-than-
significant level. The following identifies the pertinent migration measures by number and
summary title. The full text of each of the mitigation measures cited below is found in the Final
EIR and that text is hereby incorporated by reference.

Impact AQ-TOD#2-3.3: Risk levels for the on-site sensitive receptors could exceed
BAAQMD’s applicable cumulative cancer risk threshold of 100 in a million due to the siting of
the TOD # 2 Project site in proximity to sources of toxic air contaminants.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The Health Risk Assessment must demonstrate that the measures
identified will reduce health risks to an acceptable level or the sensitive land use will not be
permitted in that location.

"The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.
e AQ-TOD#2-3.3: Implement Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.2.

Impact AQ-TOD#2-4.2: Due to the proximity of the proposed TOD #2 Project site to high-
volume roadways and potentially other stationary sources, on-site residents could potentially be
exposed to substantial TAC concentrations.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The Health Risk Assessment must demonstrate that the measures
identified will reduce health risks to an acceptable level or the sensitive land use will not be
permitted in that location. :

The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.
e AQ-TOD#2-3.3: Implement Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.2.

Impact CULT-TOD#2-2: The proposed TOD #2 Project would have the potential to cause a
significant impact to an archeological resource pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5.





Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect. '

Facts in Support of Findings: No archeological resources have been identified in the TOD #2
area. Therefore, no impact to known historical archeological resources would occur through
implementation of the TOD # 2 Project. Although TOD #2 will occur on a site that has
previously been developed, there is a potential to encounter heretofore unidentified buried
cultural resources. If a potentially significant subsurface cultural resource is encountered during
ground disturbing activities, all construction activities within 100-foot radius shall cease until a
qualified archeologist determines whether the resource requires further study. In addition, tribal
representatives are to be notified if a significant excavation could reach depths below which no
such excavation has previously occurred.

The following measures mitigate this impact to a less than significant level.
e CULT-TOD#2-2a: Implement Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2a.
e CULT-TOD#2-2b: Implement Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2b.

Impact CULT-TOD#2-3: The proposed TOD #2 Project would have the potential to directly or
indirectly affect a unique paleontological resource or site, or unique geologic feature.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: In the event that fossils or fossil-bearing deposits are encountered
during group disturbing activities, excavations within a 50-foot radius of the find shall be
temporarily halted or diverted until a City-approved qualified paleontologist determines whether
the resource requires further study or additional measures, as described in Mitigation Measure
CULT-SP-3. These measures would ensure that such resources are adequately protected.

The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.
e CULT-TOD#2-3: Implement Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-3.

Impact GEO-TOD#2-1: The proposed TOD #2 Project could expose people or structures to
potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving surface
rupture along a known active fault; strong seismic ground shaking; seismic-related ground
failure, including liquefaction and landslides.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The recent geotechnical investigation of the proposed TOD #2
Project site identified settlement, including liquefaction-related settlement, as a significant

10





geotechnical concern. The report presented formal recommendations for project design and
construction, including site grading/soil preparation and foundation design, some goals of which
were to mitigate the potential for liquefaction-related settlement, expansive soils, and highly
compressible soils prone to settlement/subsidence. The final geotechnical report shall be
provided to the City of Millbrae for review and approval. The geotechnical engineer of record
should also review the final grading, drainage, and foundation plans to confirm incorporation of
the report recommendations. Lastly, field monitoring during TOD # 2 Project construction is
warranted to verify that the work is performed as recommended and in accordance with the
approve plans and specifications.

The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.

e GEO-TOD#2-1: Prepare TOD #2 site in accordance with the recommendations in the
final geotechnical report.

Impact GEO-TOD#2-3: The proposed TOD #2 Project could result in a significant impact
related to development on unstable geologic units and soils or result in lateral spreading,
subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The recent geotechnical investigation of the proposed TOD #2
Project site identified settlement, including liquefaction-related settlement, as a significant
geotechnical concern. The report presented formal recommendations for project design and
construction, including site grading/soil preparation and foundation design, some goals of which
were to mitigate the potential for liquefaction-related settlement, expansive soils, and highly
compressible soils prone to settlement/subsidence. The final geotechnical report shall be
provided to the City of Millbrae for review and approval. The geotechnical engineer of record
should also review the final grading, drainage, and foundation plans to confirm incorporation of
the report recommendations. Lastly, field monitoring during TOD # 2 Project construction is
warranted to verify that the work is performed as recommended and in accordance with the
approve plans and specifications.

The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.

e GEO-TOD#2-1: Prepare TOD #2 site in accordance with the recommendations in the
final geotechnical report.

Impact GEO-TOD#2-4: The proposed TOD #2 Project could create substantial risks to property
as a result of its location on expansive soil, as defined by Section 1803.5.3 of the California
Building Code.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

11





Facts in Support of Findings: The recent geotechnical investigation of the proposed TOD #2
Project site identified settlement, including liquefaction-related settlement, as a significant
geotechnical concern. The report presented formal recommendations for project design and
construction, including site grading/soil preparation and foundation design, some goals of which
were to mitigate the potential for liquefaction-related settlement, expansive soils, and highly
compressible soils prone to settlement/subsidence. The final geotechnical report shall be
provided to the City of Millbrae for review and approval. The geotechnical engineer of record
should also review the final grading, drainage, and foundation plans to confirm incorporation of
the report recommendations. Lastly, field monitoring during TOD # 2 Project construction is
warranted to verify that the work is performed as recommended and in accordance with the
approve plans and specifications.

The following measure mitigates this impact to a less than significant level.

e GEO-TOD#2-1: Prepare TOD #2 site in accordance with the recommendations in the
final geotechnical report.

Impact HAZ-TOD#2-4: Future development of the TOD #2 Project site would include a mixed
commercial and residential development where contaminated soil and groundwater could pose a
significant hazard to the public or the environment during redevelopment activities.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
‘above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: Studies indicate that past site uses at the TOD #2 Project site have
impacted soil and groundwater. The predominant contaminants of concern are lead in soil and
petroleum hydrocarbons, primarily diesel and oil range petroleum, in soil and ground water.
Mitigation measures appear to be required to manage impacted soil and groundwater during
redevelopment activities to limit potential risks to future occupants and construction workers.

The following measures mitigate this impact to a less than significant level.

o HAZ-TOD#2-4a: Develop an Environmental Site Management Plan based upon
applicable risk-based cleanup standards.

e HAZ-TOD#2-4b: Prepare a vapor intrusion assessment by a licensed environmental
professional and implement vapor controls and source removal if the assessment
indicates such actions are needed.

e HAZ-TOD#2-4c: Prepare a soil inspection and if contaminated soils are encountered,
such soils shall be handled and disposed of according to regulatory requirements.

Impact NOIS-TOD#2-1: The proposed TOD #2 Project would expose people to or generate
noise levels in excess of standards established in the General Plan, and/or the applicable
standards of other agencies.

12





Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The proposed TOD #2 Project will have mixed-use residential uses
and will be required to have an interior noise level of less than 45 dBA CNEL. The Lan of Long
Term Measurement Site LT-1, which is located on the TOD #2 Project site, was determined to be
67.9 dBA. This level is near the maximum outdoor noise level goal of 70 dBA Lan (or CNEL)
for areas where a railroad is the noise source, but does not go over the outdoor noise level goal.
Due to the close proximity of several stationary noise sources to the TOD #2 Project site, it is
likely that variability of ambient noise levels throughout various times of day or night would
occasionally result in noise levels exceeding the maximum outdoor noise level goal of 70 dBA
Lan (or CNEL). The development designs for TOD #2 must limit interior noise in habitable

rooms to acceptable levels of 45 dBA CNEL, per Millbrae Municipal Code standards. With such
detailed acoustic studies and design features, indoor and outdoor noise effects on residents would
be less than significant.

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:
e NOISE-TOD#2-1: Implement Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-1.

Impact NOISE-TOD#2-2: The proposed TOD #2 Project could result in exposure of persons to
or generation of excessive groundborne noise levels from vibration related to railway
transportation activity.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The proximity of the Caltrain tracks and BART tracks would
produce an RMS Velocity level of 76 to 78 VdB and 72 to 73 VdB, respectively. This level
exceeds the standards of the Federal Transit Administration’s Criteria for Human Annoyance. In
order to mitigate this impact, the City of Millbrae will require modifications to the vibration
propagation pathway and/or receiving building designs.

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:
¢ NOISE-TOD#2-2: Implement Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-2.2.

Impact NOISE-TOD#2-4: Construction activities associated with the proposed TOD #2 Project
would result in substantial temporary or periodic increases in ambient noise levels in the vicinity
of the TOD #2 Project site above existing levels.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

13





Facts in Support of Findings: Average noise levels at the closest residential land uses to the
northwest of the TOD #2 Project site could be in the range of 70.7 to 74.9 dBA L, for periods
during the highest levels of construction activity. While the magnitude of the average noise
levels would be higher than the ambient noise environment at noise-sensitive land uses,
construction activities would fluctuate throughout the workday as equipment would not be in use
at the same time at one location, nor for an extended period of time on any given workday.
Furthermore, construction activities would comply with Municipal Code Section 9.05.020 and
General Plan Policy NS1.4, which are listed above under NOISE-4 for the Specific Plan Update.
However, noise level near the center of the TOD # 2 Project site is 67.9 dBA and therefore
requires mitigation.

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:
e NOISE-TOD#2-4: Implement Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-4.

Impact NOISE-TOD#2-5: The TOD #2 Project would cause exposure of people residing or
working in the vicinity of TOD #2 to excessive aircraft noise levels.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings. In general, it is likely that residents living in the TOD #2 Project
site would be exposed to noise from aircraft activity at San Francisco International Airport
(SFO), but that this noise would be generally short and intermittent. The TOD #2 Project site is
not located within the 2014 65 dBA CNEL Aircraft Noise Contour for SFO, however, it is
located within the 1983 65 dBA CNEL Aircraft Noise Contour for SFO under the Millbrae
General Plan. Since the proposed TOD #2 Project will contain residential uses, the 1996 San
Mateo County Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan (CLUP) determines that development
should be undertaken only after an analysis of noise reduction requirements is made and needed
insulation features are included in the design.

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:
e NOISE-TOD#2-5: Implement Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-1.

Impact TRANS-TOD#2-20: The proposed TOD #2 Project would reduce access to transit
service or create unsafe access for transit passengers.

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by Public
Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with respect to the
above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The Millbrae station requires a total of 7 bus bays to accommodate
future prrojected bus and shuttle service. TOD #2 proposes to add a total of five bays for

shuttles. Because of the insufficient number of bays and the increased walking distance,
mitigation is required in the form of shuttle access as close as possible to the station entrance,

14





four bays for cutaway shuttles, three bays and two layover spots for larger over-the-road coaches
and transit buses, and intersection improvements for pedestrian access.

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:

e TRANS-TOD#2-20: Implement project design features to increase bus and pedestrian
access to Millbrae station.

Impact UTIL-TOD#2-6: The proposed TOD #2 Project would adversely affect the already
limited capacity of sewer pipes adjacent to the TOD #2 Project area.

Finding: Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby makes finding (a)(1), as required by
Public Resources Code § 21081 and stated in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, with
respect to the above identified effect.

Facts in Support of Findings: The additional sanitary flows from the proposed TOD #2 Project
will affect the already limited capacity of sewer pipes adjacent to the TOD #2 Project site. The
Millbrae Capital Improvement Program for the Sewer Collection System does not specifically
address funding the needed additional sewer capacity and/or reduced rainfall dependent
infiltration inflow (RDII) for the sewer collection system, including the additional needs of the
proposed TOD #2 Project. The inability of the existing sanitary sewer system to accommodate
the increased flows associated with the proposed TOD #2 Project, combined with a high rate of
inflow and infiltration, will require funding and implementation of collection system
infrastructure improvements and/or reductions in inflow and infiltration during peak wet weather
flow (i.e. RDII).

The following measure mitigates this impact to less than significant:

e UTIL-TOD#2-4: The project applicant shall engineer, design, and pay their fair share of
capital improvements to increase capacity and/or reduce RDII for the sewer collection
and treatment system.

FINDINGS REGARDING THE ALTERNATIVES
To TOD #2

As required by CEQA, discussion of possible alternatives to the Project, including the No-
Project Alternative, was included in the Final EIR. These findings are repeated below. With the
adoption of TOD #2, the BART Board of Directors makes the following findings to support the
rejection of two alternatives as discussed in Chapter 5 of the Final EIR, which is hereby
incorporated by reference.

As noted above, Section 15091(a)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines requires a responsible
agency to make the findings require by Section 15091; and Section 15091(a)(3) provides that a
lead agency may find that the significant impacts of a project alternative render that alternative
infeasible for legal, social technological, or other considerations. Chapter 5 of the Final EIR
screened two alternatives for technical, logistical, and financial infeasibility, but did not evaluate
the alternatives for all economic, legal, social, or other considerations. Thus, the use of the term

15





“infeasible” in the findings below is more expansive than as used in Chapter 5 of the Final EIR.
An alternative may have been determined to be technically, logistically, and financially
“feasible” in the Final EIR and still ultimately be determined “infeasible” within the meaning of
Section 15091(a)(3). City of Del Mar v. City of San Diego (1982) 133 Cal. App. 3d 401, 417.
Where there are competing and conflicting interests to be resolved, the determination of
infeasibility “is not a case of straightforward questions of legal or economic feasibility,” but
rather, based on policy considerations. Cal. Native Plant Society v. City of Santa Cruz (2009)
177 Cal. App. 4th 957, 1001-02. “[A]n alternative that is impractical or undesirable from a
policy standpoint may be rejected as infeasible.” /d. at 1002.

No-Project Alternative

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby finds that this alternative is ultimately rejected
as infeasible for the following reasons.

Facts in Support of Findings: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.6(¢)(1), the No-
Project Alternative is required as part of the “reasonable range of alternatives™ to allow decision
makers to compare the impacts of approving the proposed project with the impacts of taking no
action or not approving the proposed project. Under this alternative, the proposed TOD #2
Project would not be approved, and the TOD #2 Project site would be developed consistent with
the 1998 Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan as amended by the City Council in 2002 (1998
Specific Plan). Even if no action were taken on the TOD #2 Project, regional growth, and the
associated environmental effects linked to this growth, would continue to occur under the
‘provisions of the current 1998 Specific Plan.

The primary intent of the proposed TOD #2 Project is to develop a high-quality mixed-use
development on the TOD #2 Project site. Under the Project objectives, the type of mixed-use
development should include Class A office, retail, high-density residential units and a hotel for
current and future residents and employees desiring to reside and work in a transit friendly
environment in Millbrae with convenient transit connectivity to the larger Bay Area. This
alternative would also not be consistent with the Plan Bay Area Priority Development Area
(PDA), which is intended to encourage high density new development in close proximity to
transit nodes that will help to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions through a reduction in
vehicle trips. Accordingly, because the No- Project Alternative would continue to maintain the
1998 Specific Plan, which includes office land uses only, it would not meet the overall intent of
the proposed TOD #2 Project.

For all of the foregoing reasons, and any of them individually, the No-Project Alternative is
determined to be infeasible.

Lower Intensity Project Alternative

Findings: The BART Board of Directors hereby finds that this alternative is ultimately rejected
as infeasible for the following reasons.

Facts in Support.of Findings: Under the Lower Intensity Alternative, the mix of land uses would
generally remain the same as what is proposed in the project with the exception of residential
development. As shown in Table 5.3-2 of the Final EIR, the overall development assumed for the

16





TOD #2 Project site would be reduced by 30 percent from what is assumed in the proposed
project and no residential development would occur. Although no specific maximum height has
been determined for this Alternative, it is assumed that the maximum height permitted under this
Alternative would be less than the proposed Project because the reduced development potential
would not require as much height. As with the No-Project Alternative, even if no action were
taken on the TOD #2 Project, regional growth, and the associated environmental effects linked to
this growth, would continue to occur under the provisions of the current 1998 Specific Plan.

The primary intent of the proposed TOD #2 Project is to develop a high-quality mixed-use
development on the TOD #2 Project site. Under the Project objectives, the type of mixed-use
development should include Class A office, retail, high-density residential units and a hotel for
current and future residents and employees desiring to reside and work in a transit friendly
environment in Millbrae with convenient transit connectivity to the larger Bay Area. The Lower
Intensity Alternative would generally include these types of land uses but at a reduced level and
with no residential development; therefore, this Alternative would generally meet the primary
intent of the TOD #2 Project. However, this alternative would not meet the TOD # 2 Project’s
objective to be consistent with the Plan Bay Area Transit Station Area PDA, which is intended to
encourage high density new development in close proximity to transit nodes that will help to
reduce GHG emissions through a reduction in vehicle trips. No residential development is
proposed under this Alternative.

For all of the foregoing reasons, and any of them individually, the Lower Intensity Project
Alternative is determined to be infeasible.

17





Attachment B
MILLBRAE STATION AREA SPECIFIC PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS
For TOD #2

The 2016 Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan Update and Transit-Oriented Development #1 and
#2 Final EIR indicates that if the Transit-Oriented Development #2 (TOD #2) Project is
implemented, certain significant and unavoidable impacts would result, including air quality
impacts, transportation impacts at the intersections of E1 Camino Real/Millbrae Avenue and
Rollins Road/Millbrae Avenue, and water supply impacts.

In accordance with CEQA Guidelines § 15093, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (BART) Board of Directors adopts and makes this statement of overriding considerations
concerning the unavoidable significant impacts of TOD #2 to explain why the TOD #2 Project’s
benefits override and outweigh its unavoidable impacts.

The BART Board of Directors finds that the TOD #2 Project’s significant environmental impacts
are acceptable in light of the Project’s benefits. Each benefit set forth below constitutes an
overriding consideration warranting approval of the TOD #2 Project independent of the other
benefits, despite each and every unavoidable impact.

1. Community Transformation

The TOD #2 Project supports the interests of BART, Millbrae, and the region in bringing multi-
use development to rail stations, thus working to implement both the regionally-adopted Plan
Bay Area and Millbrae’s Station Area Specific Plan. “The Plan Area will transform into a vibrant
daytime and evening activity district with a mixture of uses centered on the Millbrae
BART/Caltrain Station (Millbrae Station), reinforcing its role as the most significant regional
and local transit hub in the entire Bay Area. A series of public open spaces and a mix of uses,
including offices, housing, hotels, shops and restaurants, will draw residents, employees, and
visitors. With an increase in intensity and diversity of uses, the Plan Area will become not just a
place to live or work but a community destination.” Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan 3.1
(2016).

2. Housing

The TOD #2 Project contributes to the provision of a more diverse range of housing

opportunities by adding 321 residential units serving 851 individuals on what is currently an
underutilized property within the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan. TOD #2 provides much
needed infill development in close proximity to jobs, services, and transit. The TOD #2 Project is
consistent with the City of Millbrae’s Priority Development Area designation, intended to
encourage high density new development in close proximity to transit nodes. The TOD #2 site
has been identified as a major housing site in the Millbrae Housing Element in its planning





horizon of 2015 and 2022, as well as being part of the Transit Station Are Priority Development
Area.

3. Jobs

The TOD #2 Project offers an unusual opportunity to advance both jobs and housing at a rail
station. This is consistent with Millbrae’s Specific Plan goal of “a district that benefits Millbrae’s
local economy.” Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan 3.5 (2016). TOD jobs also support BARTs
goal of developing complete communities at stations, and allow better use of infrastructure by
balancing peak-period directional flow and growing off-peak ridership.

4. Environmental Considerations

The TOD #2 Project comports with the principles of sustainable communities by providing for
the present and future needs of residents of Millbrae and the surrounding areas. TOD #2
incorporates all feasible mitigation measures to reduce potential environmental impacts to the
greatest extent practicable. The TOD #2 Project will occur on an underutilized property within a
half-mile of the City of Millbrae’s primary gateway near Highway 101 for direct access to the
San Francisco International Airport and adjacent to Millbrae station, providing convenient access
for residents, guests, and employees to utilize public transit, reduce vehicle trips and miles
traveled, and create a more sustainable community.

5. Social Considerations

The TOD #2 Project will activate public open spaces and streets by fronting them with
pedestrian-friendly ground floor design and active retail uses. The TOD #2 Project will create
public open space intended to serve Millbrae as a locale for farmers’ markets, performances and
community events. In addition, the TOD #2 Project will allow the construction of a high-quality,
mixed-use development that minimizes the impact of new development on the character of
surrounding residential neighborhoods and adds to the visual character of Millbrae Avenue.

6. Transportation Considerations

The TOD #2 Project will create a transit friendly environment in Millbrae with convenient transit
connectivity to the larger Bay Area that will help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions through a
reduction in vehicle trips. Further, the design and construction of TOD #2 will accommodate the
needs of transit service providers to ensure safe and reliable transit access continues. The TOD
#2 Project will also provide clear and direct pedestrian and bicycle linkages along landscaped
and lighted pathways throughout the mixed-use development with direct access to pedestrian and
bicycle routes for residents, guests and employees to utilize multiple modes of transportation.
The percentage of BART riders who access the system by walking or biking will increase from
18% to 40% against the 2040 baseline while the percentage of passengers accessing the system
via car will decrease from 56% to 40%, making the provision of safe access to pedestrian and
cyclist passengers a growing concern.





Attachment C
MILLBRAE STATION AREA SPECIFIC PLAN

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
TOD #2

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

Specific Plan Update Mitigation Measures
Applicable to TOD #2 '

Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring | Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitorin

Mitigation Measure AQ-SP-4.1: Prior to future
discretionary approval, the City of Millbrac Community
Development Department shall require an applicant for a
new development project where nearby sensitive land
uses (e.g. residences, schools, and day care centers) are
within 1,000 feet of the future project site, to prepare and
submit a construction health risk assessment (HRA) to
evaluate the construction health risk impacts of the
project to the sensitive receptors. The HRA shall be
prepared in accordance with policies and procedures of
the State Office of Environmental Health Hazard

Project applicant

Prior to future
discretionary
approval

City of Millbrae
Community
Development
Department

HRA review
and
verification

Once for
preparation
of the HRA

Construction






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

Assessment (OEHHA) and the Bay Area Air Quality
Management District. The latest OEHHA guidelines
shall be used for the analysis, including age sensitivity
factors, breathing rates, and body weights appropriate for
children age 0 to 16 years. If the HRA shows that the
incremental cancer risk exceeds ten in one million (10E-
06), PM2.5 concentrations exceed 0.3 pg/m3, or the
appropriate non-cancer hazard index exceeds 1.0, the
applicant will be required to identify and demonstrate
that mitigation measures are capable of reducing
potential cancer and non-cancer risks to an acceptable
level (i.e. below ten in one million or a hazard index of
1.0), including appropriate enforcement mechanisms.

Measures to reduce risk may include but are not limited
to:

~ Use of equipment that meets the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA)-Certified
Tier 3 emissions standards for off-road diesel-powered
construction equipment greater than 50 horsepower.

.. Use of emissions control device that achieve
emissions reductions that are no less than what could be
achieved by a Level 3 diesel emissions control strategy
for a similarly sized engine, as defined by CARB
regulations.

Mitigation measures identified in the HRA shall be
identified as mitigation measures in the environmental
document and/or incorporated into all construction plans
(e.g. demolition and grading plans) and verified by the
City of Millbrae Community Development Department.

 TOD#2

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#2-3.1: Implement
Mitigation Measures AQ-TOD#1-4.1a and AQ-TOD#1-
4.1b.

Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.1a: The
Applicant shall require the construction contractor to
use equipment that meets the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA)-
Certified Tier 3 emissions standards for off-road
diesel-powered construction equipment greater than
50 horsepower. Additionally, any emissions control
device used by the contractor shall achieve
emissions reductions that are no less than what could
be achieved by a Level 3 diesel emissions control
strategy for a similarly sized engine, as defined by
CARB regulations. Prior to construction, the project
engineer shall ensure that all demolition and grading
plans clearly show the requirement for US EPA Tier
3 or higher emissions standards and Level 3 diesel
emissions control for construction equipment over
50 horsepower. During construction, the
construction contractor shall maintain a list of all
operating equipment in use on the Project site for
verification by the City of Millbrae Community
Development Department or their designee. The
construction equipment list shall state the makes,
models, and number of construction equipment
onsite. Equipment shall properly service and
maintain construction equipment in accordance with
the manufacturer’s recommendations. Construction
contractors shall also ensure that all nonessential
idling of construction equipment is restricted to five
minutes or less in compliance with CARB Rule
2449.

MM AQ-TOD

MM AQ-TOD

MM AQ-TOD

MM AQ-

#1-4.1a
Project Applicant

#1-4.1a
Prior to and
during
construction

#1-4.1a

City of Millbrae
Community
Development
Department

TOD #1-4.1a

MM AQ-
TOD #1-4.1a

Maintain list
of all
operating
equipment on
site and
service
records

Prior to
construction
and during
regularly
scheduled
site
inspections

Construction

Construction

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.1b: Prior to
issuance of any building permits, the Applicant shall
prepare and submit to the City of Millbrae
Community Development Department an additional
health risk assessment (HRA) to provide a refined
evaluation of health risks impacts to the surrounding
sensitive receptors from project-related construction
activities. If available, the HRA shall include within
the report a detailed list of the construction
equipment mix anticipated to be utilized in addition
to construction phasing and other details of the
overall construction processes. The HRA shall be
prepared in accordance with the policies and
procedures of the State Office of Environmental
Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) and the Bay
Area Air Quality Management District. The latest
OEHHA guidelines shall be used for the analysis,
including age sensitivity factors, breathing rates, and
body weights appropriate for children age 0 to 16
years. If the HRA shows that the incremental cancer
risk exceeds ten in one million (10E-06), PM2.5
concentrations exceed 0.3 pg/m3, or the appropriate
noncancer hazard index exceeds 1.0, the applicant
will be required to identify and demonstrate that
mitigation measures are capable of reducing
potential cancer and non-cancer risks to an
acceptable level (i.e. below ten in one million or a
hazard index of 1.0), including appropriate
enforcement mechanisms. Mitigation measures
identified in the HRA shall be identified as
mitigation measures in the environmental document
and/or incorporated into the all construction plans
(e.g. demolition and grading plans) and verified by
the City of Millbrae Community Development
Department.

MM AQ-
TOD#1-4.1b
Project Applicant

MM AQ-
TOD#1-4.1b

MM AQ-
TOD#1-4.1b

During building
permit and site
development
review and prior
to issuance of
building permit

City of Millbrae
Community
Development
Department
Health Risk
Assessment

MM AQ-
TOD#1-4.1b

MM AQ-
TOD#1-4.1b

Plan review
and approval

Once for
preparation
of HRA

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring
Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#2-3.3: Implement Project Applicant | During the City of Millbrae | Plan review Once for the | Permanent
Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.2. building permit Community and approval | preparation
Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#1-4.2: Prior to and site Development atthe
development Department

issuance of any building permits, the proposed TOD
#1 project applicant shall prepare and submit to the
City of Millbrae Community Development
Department a health risk assessment (HRA) to
evaluate the health risk impacts of all major sources
of TACs within 1,000 feet of the project site. The
HRA shall be prepared in in accordance with
policies and procedures of the State Office of
Environmental Health Hazard Assessment
(OEHHA) and the Bay Area Air Quality
Management District. The latest OEHHA guidelines
shall be used for the analysis, including age
sensitivity factors, breathing rates, and body weights
appropriate for children age 0 to 16 years. If the
HRA shows that the incremental cancer risk exceeds
ten in one million (10E-06), PM2.5 concentrations
exceed 0.3 pg/m3, or the appropriate noncancer
hazard index exceeds 1.0, the applicant will be
required to identify and demonstrate that mitigation
measures are capable of reducing potential cancer
and non-cancer risks to an acceptable level (i.e.
below ten in one million or a hazard index of 1.0),
including appropriate enforcement mechanisms.
Measures to reduce risk may include but are not
limited to:

Air intakes located away from high volume
roadways and/or truck loading zones.

| Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning
systems of the buildings provided with
appropriately sized Maximum Efficiency Rating

review process
and prior to
permit issuance

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

Value (MERYV) filters. Mitigation measures
identified in the HRA shall be identified as
mitigation measures in the environmental
document and/or incorporated into the site
development plan as a component of the
proposed TOD #1 project. The air intake design
and MERV filter requirements shall be noted
and/or reflected on all building plans submitted
to the City and shall be verified by the City of
Millbrae Community Development Department.

Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#2-4.1: Implement
Mitigation Measures AQ-TOD#2-3.1

Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#2-4.2: Implement
Mitigation Measure AQ-TOD#2-3.3

TOD#2

Mitigation Measure CULT-TOD#2-2a: Implement
Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2a.

Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2a: If a potentially
significant subsurface cultural resource is
encountered during ground disturbing activities, all

construction activities within a 100-foot radius of the

find shall cease until a qualified archeologist
determines whether the resource requires further
study. All developers in the Specific Plan Area shall
include a standard inadvertent discovery clause in
every construction contract to inform contractors of
this requirement. Any previously undiscovered
resources found during construction activities shall

be recorded on appropriate Department of Parks and

Recreation (DPR) forms and evaluated for

Project Applicant

During
construction

Qualified
archeologist
approved by the
City of Millbrae

Initiated after
a find is made
during
construction

During
regularly
scheduled
site
inspections
that would
be initiated
after a find is
made during
construction

Construction

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

significance in terms of CEQA criteria by a qualified
archeologist. If the resource is determined significant
under CEQA, the qualified archaeologist shall
prepare and implement a research design and
archaeological data recovery plan that will capture
those categories of data for which the site is
significant. The archaeologist shall also perform
appropriate technical analyses; prepare a
comprehensive report complete with methods,
results, and recommendations; and provide for the
permanent curation of the recovered resources. The
report shall be submitted to the City of Millbrae,
Northwest Information Center (NWIC), and State
Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), if required.

Mitigation Measure CULT-TOD#2-2b: Implement
Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2b.

Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-2b: The
Community Development Director, or his/her
designee, shall notify the Indian Canyon Mutsun
Band of Costanoan tribe at the time final
applications for future projects under the Specific
Plan Update where future development requires
substantial excavation that could reach significant
depths below the ground surface where no such
excavation has previously occurred.

Project Applicant

During the
building permit
and site
development
review process’
and prior to
permit issuance.

City of Millbrae
Community
Development
Department

Initiated when
approved
projects
require
excavation
below ground
surface

Prior to
construction

Construction

Mitigation Measure CULT-TOD#2-3: Implement
Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-3.

Mitigation Measure CULT-SP-3: In the event that
fossils or fossil bearing deposits are discovered
during ground disturbing activities, excavations
within a 50-foot radius of the find shall be
temporarily halted or diverted. Ground disturbance

Project Applicant

During
construction

Qualified
paleontologist
approved by the
City of Millbrae

Initiated after
a find is made
during
construction

During
regularly
scheduled
site
inspections
initiated after
a find is

Construction

4823-6753-3362.v1






settlement/subsidence. The final geotechnical report
shall be provided to the City of Millbrae for review and

Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring | Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring

work shall cease until a City-approved qualified made during

paleontologist determines whether the resource construction

requires further study. The paleontologist shall

document the discovery as needed (in accordance

with Society of Vertebrate Paleontology standards

[Society of Vertebrate Paleontology 1995]), evaluate

the potential resource, and assess the significance of

the find under the criteria set forth in CEQA

Guidelines Section 15064.5. The paleontologist shall

notify the appropriate agencies to determine

procedures that would be followed before

construction activities are allowed to resume at the

location of the find. If avoidance is not feasible, the

paleontologist shall prepare an excavation plan for

mitigating the effect of construction activities on the

discovery. The excavation plan shall be submitted to

the City of Millbrae for review and approval prior to

implementation, and all construction activity shall

adhere to the recommendations in the excavation

plan.

 TOD#2 _

Mitigation Measure GEO-TOD#2-1: The recent Project Applicant | During the The City of Plan review Once at time | Permanent
geotechnical investigation of the proposed TOD #2 building permit Millbrae and approval | final
project site identified settlement, including liquefaction- and site Community geotechnical
related settlement, as a significant geotechnical concern. development Development report is
The report presented formal recommendations for review process Department and prepared,
project design and construction, including site and prior to the Geotechnical prior to
grading/soil preparation and foundation design, some permit issuance. | engineer of construction
goals of which were to mitigate the potential for record and during
liquefaction-related settlement, expansive soils, and regularly
highly compressible soils prone to scheduled

4823-6753-3362.v1






plans to confirm incorporation of the report
recommendations. Lastly, field monitoring during
project construction is warranted to verify that the work
is performed as recommended and in accordance with
the approved plans and specifications.

Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring
approval. The geotechnical engineer of record should site
also review the final grading, drainage, and foundation inspections

Mitigation Measure GEO-TOD#2-3: Implement
Mitigation Measure GEO-TOD#2-1.

Mitigation Measure GEO-TOD#2-4: Implement
Mitigation Measure GEO-TOD#2-1.

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Mitigation Measure HAZ-TOD#2-4a: Prior to the
issuance of a building permit, the agency with primary
regulatory oversight of environmental conditions at the
project site ("Oversight Agency") shall have determined
that the proposed land use for that property, including
proposed development features and design, does not
present an unacceptable risk to human health, if
applicable, through the use of an Environmental Site
Management Plan (ESMP) that could include
institutional controls, site-specific mitigation measures, a
risk management plan, and deed restrictions based upon
applicable risk-based cleanup standards. Remedial action
plans, risk management plans and health and safety plans
shall be required as determined by the Oversight Agency
for a given property under applicable environmental
laws, if not already completed, to prevent an
unacceptable risk to human health, including workers
during and after construction, from exposure to residual
contamination in soil and groundwater in connection

Project Applicant

During the
building permit
and site
development
review process
and prior to
permit issuance.

The appropriate
“Oversight
Agency”
designated by the
City of Millbrae

Plan review
and approval

Prior to
construction
and during
regularly
scheduled
site
inspections

Permanent

4823-6753-3362.v1





Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring | Monitoring | Construction/

Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring

with remediation and site development activities and the

proposed land use.

Mitigation Measure HAZ-TOD#2-4b: Prior to the Project Applicant | During the Licensed Plan review Prior to Permanent

construction of the proposed TOD #2 project, the Project building permit environmental and approval | construction

Applicant shall prepare a vapor intrusion assessment by and site professional in and during

a licensed environmental professional. If the results of development accordance with regularly

the vapor intrusion assessment indicate the potential for review process RWQCB, DTSC, scheduled

significant vapor intrusion into the proposed building, and prior to and SMCEHD site

the project design shall include vapor controls or source permit issuance. inspections

removal, as appropriate, in accordance with Regional

Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), the Department

of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) or the San Mateo

County Environmental Health Divisions (SMCEHD)

requirements. Appropriate soil vapor mitigations or

controls could include vapor barriers, passive venting,

and/or active venting. The vapor intrusion assessment as

associated vapor controls or source removal can be

incorporated into the ESMP (Mitigation Measure HAZ-

TOD#2-1a).

Mitigation Measure HAZ-TOD#2-4c: Prior to the Project Applicant | Prior to Licensed Prior to Prior to Construction

import of a soil, the Project Applicant shall prepare a soil
inspection where such soils shall be sampled for toxic or
hazardous materials exceeding applicable Environmental
Screening Levels by a licensed environmental
professional during the construction phase. If
contaminated soils are encountered, such soils shall be
handled and disposed of in accordance with Regional
Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), the Department
of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) or the San Mateo
County Environmental Health Divisions (SMCEHD)

construction

environmental
professional in
accordance with
RWQCB, DTSC,
and SMCEHD

import of soil

construction

requirements.

10

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring

TOD#2 ; :
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#2-1: Implement Project Applicant | During the The City of Plan review Prior to Permanent
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-1. building permit Millbrae and approval | construction

Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-1: Z“d oue Comimutity Anfl-dusng

. p » evelopment Development regularly
Development of residential uses in the TOD #1 .
f 3 . review process Department scheduled

project site shall conform to the outdoor noise level and rior to site

goal of 70 dBA Ldn (or CNEL) for areas where a e . .

railroad is the noise source as established in General permit issuance HiSpecuohs

Plan Policy NS2.1. Additionally, indoor noise levels

for residential uses in the TOD #1 project site shall

demonstrate an indoor noise level of 45 dBA CNEL,

per Millbrae Municipal Code standards. To achieve

this goal, acoustical studies shall be prepared during

the project design phase and shall accompany the

building plans submitted to the City for approval.

These studies must demonstrate that the structure has

been designed to limit interior noise in habitable

rooms to acceptable noise levels. With such detailed

acoustical studies and the associated appropriate

sound insulation design features, indoor and outdoor

noise effects for residents living in the TOD #1

project site would be less than significant.
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#2-2: Implement Project Applicant | During the City of Millbrae | Plan review Prior to Permanent
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-2.2. building permit Community and approval | construction

Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-2.2: The 32‘3:1‘:’ e gzvzﬁ’;':;“;n i f:duf;rlmg

project applicant shall submit a vibration evaluation reviewpprocess thepacous tical or sc%e dulZ d

study to the satisfaction of the City of Millbrae and prior to vibrations site

Community Development Department. Site-specific ol ST e inspections

reports should contain a brief description of the P & 4

project(s) and the sensitivity of the land use type to

vibration effects/impacts, an accurate map describing

the setting with surrounding uses and vibration

sources identified, and a quantitative description of

11

4823-6753-3362.v1





Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency

Responsible for

Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

the vibration environment. For multi-story
structures, the report should discuss vibration effects
for the upper floors. Field vibration level
measurements should be taken over several days and
at several locations to adequately establish the in situ
conditions from rail operations. If the project is
located within the vicinity of previously collected
measurements, a measurement should also be
duplicated at that point for purposes of updating the
database to the then-current conditions. Vibration
reports shall be prepared by an acoustical or
vibrations engineer holding a degree in engineering,
architecture, physics, or allied discipline able to
demonstrate a minimum of two years of experience
in the following areas: field measurement of
vibration levels, transportation vibration forecasting,
building acoustics and vibration isolation, and
vibration mitigation. The evaluation report shall
include design recommendations for external project
features or internal project features or both to
adequately mitigate rail vibration at the receiver
property. External project features could include
investigations of buffer zones near rail lines or the
use of vibration-reducing trenches between the rail
line(s) and the receiving property. Internal design
features could include investigations of building
designs for whole-building isolation features and/or
floor stiffening elements.

Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#2-4: Implement
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-4.

Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#1-4: The project
Applicant shall implement the following measures,

Project Applicant

During the
building permit
and site
development
review process

City of Millbrae
Community
Development
Department

Ensure
compliance
with contract
provisions

Prior to
construction
and during
regularly
scheduled

Construction

12

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring | Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring
which shall be identified in construction contracts and prior to site

and acknowledged by the contractor:

i Construction equipment shall be well
maintained and used judiciously to be as quiet as
practical. Equipment and trucks used for project
construction shall utilize the best available noise
control techniques (e.g. improved mufflers,
equipment redesign, use of intake silencers,
ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically
attenuating shields or shrouds), wherever
feasible;

Utilize “quiet” models of air compressors and
other stationary noise sources where such
technology exists. Select hydraulically or
electrically powered equipment and avoid
pneumatically powered equipment where
feasible. Impact tools (e.g. jack hammers,
pavement breakers, and rock drills) used for
project demolition or construction shall be
hydraulically or electrically powered wherever
possible to avoid noise associated with
compressed air exhaust from pneumatically
powered tools. However, where use of
pneumatic tools is unavoidable, an exhaust
muffler on the compressed air exhaust shall be
used. Quieter procedures shall be used, such as
drills rather than impact equipment, whenever
such procedures are available and consistent
with construction procedures;

Locate stationary noise-generating equipment
as far as possible from sensitive receptors that
adjoin construction sites. Construct temporary
noise barriers or partial enclosures to

permit issuance

inspections

13

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring
Frequency

Construction/
Permanent

acoustically shield such equipment where
feasible;

Prohibit unnecessary idling of internal
combustion engines;

_ Prior to initiation of on-site construction-
related demolition or earthwork activities, a
minimum 8-foot-high temporary sound barrier
shall be erected along the project property line
abutting adjacent operational businesses,
residences or other noise-sensitive land uses.
These temporary sound barriers shall be
constructed with a minimum surface weight of 4
pounds per square foot and shall be constructed

so that vertical or horizontal gaps are eliminated.

These temporary barriers shall remain in place
through the construction phase in which heavy
construction equipment, such as excavators,
dozers, scrapers, loaders, rollers, pavers, and
dump trucks, are operating within 50 feet of the
edge of the construction site by adjacent
sensitive land uses. This measure could lower
construction noise levels at adjacent, ground-
floor residential units by up to 8 dBA,
depending on topography and site conditions;

" To the maximum extent feasible, route
construction-related traffic along major
roadways and away from sensitive receptors;

" Notify all businesses, residences or other
noise-sensitive land uses within 500 feet of the
perimeter of the construction site of the
construction schedule in writing prior to the
beginning of construction and prior to each
construction phase change that could potentially

14

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures

Party
Responsible for
Implementation

Implementation
Timing

Agency
Responsible for
Monitoring

Monitoring
Action

Monitoring | Construction/
Frequency Permanent

result in a temporary increase in ambient noise
levels in the project vicinity;

Signs shall be posted at the construction site
that include permitted construction days and
hours, a day and evening contact number for the
job site, and a day and evening contact number
for the on-site complaint and enforcement
manager, and the City’s Building Division, in
the event of problems;

. An on-site complaint and enforcement
manager shall be available to respond to and
track complaints. The manager will be
responsible for responding to any complaints
regarding construction noise and for
coordinating with the adjacent land uses. The
manager will determine the cause of any
complaints (e.g. starting too early, bad muffler,
etc.) and coordinate with the construction team
to implement effective measures (considered
technically and economically feasible) to correct
the problem. The telephone number of the
coordinator shall be posted at the construction
site and provided to neighbors in a notification
letter. The manager shall notify the City’s
Building Division of all complaints within 24
hours. The manager will be trained to use a
sound level meter and should be available
during all construction hours to respond to
complaints; and

A pre-construction meeting shall be held with
Building Division Staff and the general
contractor/on-site project manager to confirm
that noise measures and practices (including

15

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring | Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring

construction hours, neighborhood notification,
posted signs, etc.) are fully operational.

Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#2-5: Implement
Mitigation Measure NOISE-TOD#2-1.
TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION
TOD#2 :

Mitigation Measure TRANS-TOD#2-20: The project
shall provide shuttle access on the eastside of the station
as close to the Millbrae Station entrance as possible
taking into consideration the design constraints of the
proposed TOD #2 project. Cutaway shuttles (35 feet and
smaller) should be allowed to use the East Station
Access Road with accommodations for four (4) bays
while the three (3) bays and two (2) layover spots
included in the TOD #2 project site would provide
access to larger (up to 45 feet) over-the-road (OTR)
coaches and transit buses. Garden Lane east of Rollins
Road shall be widened to 12-foot travel lanes to safely
accommodate bi-directional bus activity. The
intersection crossing at Garden Lane and Rollins Road
shall be designed with improvements to enhance the
safety and convenience of pedestrian access to shuttle
access on Garden Lane.

UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS
TOD#2 :

Project Applicant

Prior to
construction

City of Millbrae
and BART

Approve
project design
incorporating
mitigation

Once for Permanent
preparation
of complying

plans

Mitigation Measure UTIL-TOD#2-6. Prior to the
issuance of building permits, the proposed TOD #2
project applicant, in coordination with the City, shall
engineer, design and pay their fair share of the capital
improvements required to increase capacity and/or
reduce Rainfall Dependent Infiltration Inflow (RDII) for
the sewer collection and treatment system, based on

Project Applicant
and City of
Millbrae

During the
building permit
and site
development
review process

City of Millbrae

Plan review
and approval

Once for Permanent
preparation
of capital
improvement

N

16

4823-6753-3362.v1






Mitigation Measures Party Implementation Agency Monitoring Monitoring | Construction/
Responsible for Timing Responsible for Action Frequency Permanent
Implementation Monitoring

hydraulic studies and agreements forthcoming by the
applicant, prior to City approval of the project building

permits.

and prior to
permit issuance

17

4823-6753-3362.v1










Millbrae Transit Oriented Development Update




Board of Directors					   June 23, 2016









Here to provide an update on TOD planning at Millbrae Station, and then to transition the conversation to Real Estate for a closed session discussion of price and terms, and proposed motion, of the proposed TOD.  We were last at the Board with this topic in April.  

0



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Millbrae Station discussion today

Station planning update

Developer activities

City of Millbrae activities

Proposed motion (ACTION)

Real estate price and terms (closed session)



1





YES  [ ]

In the context of the april BOD discussion when we were last here: update on issues, almost all Access/Circ.  

Access by mode,  

How we are accommodating ‘partners”

TDM

After reviewing planning topics, will be a closed session on real estate price+terms.

*******************************************************



ENA was awarded to RUP by the Board in 2013

Last time we spoke with the Board was last month – open session on project update and closed session on real estate terms. 



2005  Began work at Millbrae with a market assessment.

2007 Board directed staff to pursue TOD at Millbrae Station.  

2010 RFQ

2012 BAFOs

2013 Award to RUP, ENA

	Also began working on station access that year.

2014  ENA extension 

Continued work on station planning and real estate negotiations

Completing Phase 1 Access work, and seeking Board action on transaction



1



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Site context

Insert local context map:  SFO, 101, ECR.



A1.00 from submittal

2







skip

2







Increase transit ridership

Increase District revenue

Implement good TOD

Support design excellence

Improve land use mix

Increase density near stations

Partner with communities

Achieve positive mode shift



3

Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
BART Goals for Millbrae TOD 





Skip

****************************************

We have high expectations for the TOD development at Millbrae.  

Although a challenging site, B+Developer are working toward meeting these 8 goals:  

3



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Planned TOD


4



5A

5B

6A

6B

BART Garage

BART Station





quick

5A  5B  6A  6B 

Garden Lane Paseo = Bike/ped route, partial car access.  Flow route to Station, past retail+services, creating activity path.  

Plaza.   Highly visible, accessible.  Community evernts and placemaking.

Building volumes at maximum allowable, or within 10% of max.

Note 1 significant LU change since EIR completed:  6B was _____sf of office/retail.   Now 55 units of Vets preference housing.  

No resulting increase in env impacts.  In fact reduces transportation impacts.  

***************************************************************



Landscaping.  Human scale design.  

    Sp Plan urges “outdoor rooms.”  

    Directly accessible to rail riders, residents, office workers, retail+rest visitors.









4



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Access + circulation planning





Millbrae Station



Access and Circulation Plan





Fehr & Peers,  2016



5







Much of conversation from April Board meeting focused on access and circulation planning at the station.

Since then we have advanced the A+CP.  Met with stakeholders again to review Draft Final and review comments and proposed changes.  Working to create the Final S+C Plan now.  Have a couple remaining issues to resolve.  



**********************************************************



Status = many issues resolved in last 3 years. 

Partners still want to know:  How soon can the Comprehensive Access Plan start, is there adequate shuttle berthing in the TOD, ______________.



Began work on A+C in 2013.  Like the rest of this project, been much work, much collaboration and many changes since then. 

Parties = 



5



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Access planning partnering 

6





































ADD CALTRANS LOGO !!!

6



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Mode of access: 2008 v 2015

7%

1%

18%

66%

8%

15%

3%

16%

48%

19%

Share of total home-based riders in year of survey



Source:  BART Station Profile Survey 2008/2015





A.  Per new Station Profile Survey, mode of access to BART.  2015 data, released in March.   

Ridership increased over the period 2008 to 2015.  By ___________ %.  

But big increase in riders w/o increase in parking.  Riders are now increasingly arriving by walking, Caltrain, or DOPU/taxi/shuttle.  

	15% walk

	3% cycle

	16% transit, including Caltrain

	45% drive alone

	3% carpool

	19% drop-off/taxi

(Homebased riders = 2/3.)



B.  Also did Millbrae-specific arrival counts in February:  East side of Station, 6 am to 9 am.  Not exclusive to BARTriders!

Peds = 223			Bikes = 28			Shuttle = 474



****************************************************************************

Growth x percentage:

More BART passengers accessed Millbrae BART by all modes between 2008 and 2015, but all modes varied significantly in their amount of growth.  The number of passengers arriving by public transit or park and ride increased modestly between 2008 and 2015, while the station saw significant increases in passengers arriving by foot or by “drop-off/taxi/other”, (which includes shuttles.)  The station also experienced a large amount of growth in passengers arriving by bicycle – a fourfold increase in absolute numbers – though as a share of total riders cycling remains low, at 3%.

	





7



Mode of Access to Millbrae BART  
Home-based riders 

2008	Walked all the way to BART	Bicycled	Bus, train, or other public transit 	Drove alone/carpooled	Dropped off/taxi	194.96393896568011	32.10364436564079	532.17175415031681	1954.770840000461	225.32121171991773	2015	Walked all the way to BART	Bicycled	Bus, train, or other public transit 	Drove alone/carpooled	Dropped off/taxi	735.69958580904597	124.35899085427353	740.58650640828944	2272.9394850212088	893.58676826630176	Number of Riders (Weekday Entries)



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Pedestrian circulation, per MSASP









8

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









QUICK look at access mode schemes:

Access and circulation at Station are managed by the terms of the Mill Sta Area Specific Plan, and our Access+Circulation Plan, under development now. 

Shows the ped circ. from the Sp Plan.  Focuses on access to station from surroundings, and safety on the site.  







8



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Pedestrian access improvements










9

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









QUICK.

From BART-led Access and Circulation Plan.  

Looks in more detail at ped movements throughout the site.  

Improvements include:  Raised intersection and 

	ped-activated beacons to make movement safe.  

	Improved signage and wayfinding throughout station.  





******************************************************************

Microsim looked at Rollins+Garden Lane.  Showed 3-legged crosswalk successfully moves peds while avoiding car queueing.  WHAT ABOUT FOURTH LEG???

9



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Transit circulation concept, per MSASP

10











[QUIck, then focus on conflict.]

From Specific Plan.

Samtrans buses on west side, except for an owl bus.  So looking at shuttles here. 

Shuttles up to 40 feet use East Station Road.  3 berths.  Drop pax very close to station entrance. 

Signage to prevent PUDO in shuttle zones.  

Shuttles of 45 feet berth on west side of Rollins, 2 berths.  Pax Garden Lane Paseo to access the station, or TOD facilities.  

Features include shelters, benches, lighting, real time information.  

And adaptive electronic signage identifying incoming shuttles and where they will be berthing. 

East Garden Lane can accommodate future demand, if shuttles continue to grow.  



*********************************

Consider adding elevators, escalators, stairs at shuttle turnaround, near station entrance if shuttle activity increases greatly, exp with HSR. 

East 

10



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Transit access improvements










11

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









YES.

Ac+Circ Plan review of shuttle function.  Confirmed 5 shuttle slots, all west of Rollins Ave.  

Want to note:  Shuttle berthing is an ongoing discussion with Samtrans.  

ST wants more berthing slots for future shuttles.  We believe have met and exceeded today’s demand and foreseeable future demand.  5 berths 

Max shuttles per 30 min period today = 9.  Almost no overlap.  

TOD will provide berths for 26 shuttles per 30 minute period.  Believe this is adequate.  	

With about 400 people boarding or alighting per day on the east side, plenty of slots.

  

Future:  



****************************************************************************************************



11



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Bike circulation, per MSASP










12

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









QUICK.





12



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Bike access improvements










13

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









QUICK.

 



13



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Bike facilities in development










14









YES.

Bikes currently only 3% of BART riders at station.  Proposal would augment both access and facilities.  Hope to increase significantly.  

Planned:

Wayfinding

Class 1 multi-use path on Aviador to link Bay Trail segments.  

Smooth bike transitions at intersections with wide ramps, pavement markings, clear signage for cyclist safety, comfort and visibility. 

Sharrows and striping on Garden Lane and Rollins Road routes. 

Secure bike parking, bike kitchen in 5B. 





Partnered future improvements:

City and RUP in discussion about long-discussed bike/ped bridge over 101 – link to Bay Trail.  Partnership required for this facility.  About $12 million.  

Also looking into a Class 1 multi-use route on north side of Millbrae Ave.  Better east side/west side connection from ECR.  

Bike lanes on Rollins Road south of Millbrae.  Add bike lanes to South Station Road south of Millbrae, in conjunction with development there. 

Class 3 bike path Aviador connecting to Hillcrest Ave.  

14









Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Access:  pick-up/drop off concept under study  

15

p







Drop-off concept under Study

Drop off area

Exit

Exit

Entry









To BART Station 





YES.

Working on a scheme for kiss+ride area in garage.  As this has evolved, thinking in garage is primarily Drop Off.  

Think we can work through some perceived safety issues with signage, allowing PM pick-up in TOD area.  

Concern is separating shuttle activity from PUDO activity.  Trying to learn from MacArthur Station.  

Close access to station entrance. 

Lighting, floor treatment, additional modern cameras, real time signage.    



**************************************************************************************

Millbrae a relatively safe station.  Were 11 reported Part 1 crimes in 2015.  



15



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Vehicle circulation concept, per MSASP




16

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









SKIP



16



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Vehicle access improvements


Continue coordinated station planning effort with City, developer, access partners

Refine revenue estimates:  ground rent, participation rent, fares and parking

City:  release Draft EIR

Report to Board on City’s Draft EIR

City:  release Final EIR

City:  consider certifying EIR, adopting project

Bring RUP precise plan, financial package to Board for consideration 









17

INSERT HERE: 

PED PLAN GRAPHIC

TRANSIT

BIKE

PUDO 

PARKING

SUMMARY TABLE, PER TOM RAD. 









Again, want to be clear on some partner sticking points:  City staff concerned about possible excess queuing of cars v ped+bike safety.  City believes could be an issue at the Rollins/Garden intersection.  Again, need to balance safe, comfortable, direct ped+bike access to the station with need to prevent excessive car queuing.  A microsimulation study was done for the city 

First, locating all transit/shuttle PUDO west of Rollins will keep number of crossing peds lower than otherwise.  Expect ped crossings to increase from about 20 per hour to about 45 per hour with TOD.

For safety, project will include a raised intersection at Rollins/Garden Lane, ped-activated beacons, and 3-sided crosswalk.  

17




Millbrae TOD update, June 2016
Required minimum parking and 
proposed development parking

		Land Use		 Specific Plan Required Ratio -- General		Specific Plan Required Ratio -- Transit-Oriented
		Proposed RUP Ratio


		Office – 5A		2.5/1,000 sf		1.5/1,000 sf		1.5/1,000 sf

		Residential 5B, 6B		1.25/unit		1.0/unit		1.0/unit

		Hotel – 6A		1.0/room		0.4/room		0.49/room


		Retail -- throughout		3.0/1,000 sf 		1.5/1,000 sf 		1.5/1,000 sf 

		Restaurant -- throughout		6.5/1,000 sf		5.0/1,000 sf		4.5/1,000 sf



18





YES.

RUP has been responsive in working with us on reducing parking:  

Office originally proposed at 2.94 per 1000sf / Now 1.5.  

Pleasant Hill TOD = 2.94 .  



And all unbundled!  

And working on shared use!  All rows should say “Negotiating shared use” – including Office. 



************************

Flat floors:  Cost prohibitive to give up revenue-producing space for fewer (higher) floors plus circular ramp.  RUP says could drop project below its required return on cost.



(745 is correct, doing the math from Developer’s page 1.  Not correct based on Developer’s page 1 Totals at the top.)

********************************************************************************************************************************

Total BART spaces today = 2,979

Existing garage = 2,096 spaces



SFO’s Runway Protection Zone and PG+E easement restrict Sites 6A and 6B to surface parking =  339 spaces

Parking spaces available for development = 544

If all 544 removed, “replacement” = 82% of all spaces



Considering garage to be permanent and development limitations, replacement = 62% of surface spaces







18



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
90% sharable parking

19











Parking.  Approximately 3000 spaces at Station:  2000 in garage + 1000 surface spaces.



Change in number of spaces

  A = Garage.  2096 spaces.  The garage stays

  B = Restricted surface spaces.  339  SFO+PGE restrictions.  Cannot be anything but parking.  No structures.   

  C = Unrestricted surface spaces.  524.  This is the key figure.  524 spaces available for redevelopment.  



Today = 524 “unrestricted” surface parking spaces 

Once TOD implemented = 109 of these spaces  (all located near the hotel)

So 524 spaces are replaced with “development + 109 surface parking spaces”

Proposal is to reduce unrestricted surface parking by 79%.



RUP will be adding some internal parking in Office and Multifamily Res building.  

Office parking and apartment parking is at or below City’s required ratio:

Office at 1.5 / 1000 sf, per Sp Plan

Retail at 1.5 / 1000 sf, per Sp Plan

Apartments (376) at .95 per unit, less than SP at 1.0

Restaurant at 5.0 / 1000 sf, above Sp Plan requirement of 4.5 

Hotel at .49 / room, above Sp Plan req of 0.4 per room



_____________________________MORE MORE MOREMORE MORE MORE MORE MORE MORE MORE MORE !!!!!!!!!!!!!









2.  Change in use of spaces. 

90% of parking at the Station is sharable.  



Office, hotel, retail, restaurant parking + BART parking can be shared evenings and weekends

(All spaces except 321 Residential + 7 residential-associated office spaces can be shared)





Weekdays (peak demand = midweek midday) can share BART and retail/restaurant parking.  



********************************************************************************************************************



BART spaces reduced by 471 spaces (2959-2488=471=16% reduction)

The 339 spaces east side not usable for anything but parking:  Will restriping change the count??





19



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Remaining issues with partners  




Pedestrian / bike safety and vehicle queueing at Rollins Road and Garden Lane

Adequate future shuttle berthing 

Extension of South Station Road in front of station

20





Goal = 100% of the parties 80% satisfied.  We are close.   Believe 3 issues.



20



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
1.  Remaining issue:  Rollins Road/Garden Lane  


Peds and bikes crossing Rollins Road at Garden

Balancing safe comfortable direct ped+bike access

with preventing excessive vehicle queueing

Safety features

Rollins/Garden Lane crosswalk

Proposed resolution:  microsimulation to determine final configuration and signalization

21





City concern w vehicle queueing.

All-party concern with ped+bike safety.



Safety features = beacons and raised intersection and stops on ends of Garden Lane



Proposed Resolution:  Microsim to determine configuration and signalization  





21



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
1.  Remaining issue:  Rollins Road / Garden Lane  


Insert map here for Rollins/Garden Lane discussion



22







“Recommended” in DEIR

“Option” in FEIR



22



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
2.  Remaining issue:  future shuttle berths 


EIR defined “current and future demand” as 7 berths

RUP plan shows 8 berths

Mitigations put 4 at station entrance

					 2 at Rollins Road

					 2 at Garden Lane East

Plan meets calculated demand, preferred location

Proposed resolution:  Agree to adequacy of plan

23





Quotes from City and ST letters “___”

Draft EIR had all shuttles at Garden Lane East



23



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
2.  Remaining issue:  future shuttle berths 


Insert map for shuttle conversation here

24







Quotes from City and ST letters “___”

24



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
3.  Remaining issue:  South Station Road  


Extension of South Station Road in front of station for shuttles

Response for today:   Not appropriate

Reduces pedestrian safety by adding conflict with vehicles

Cuts through heart of TOD public plaza

Future:  Not to preclude possible evaluation of road behind escalator if: 

Shuttle access and capacity needs cannot be met

Ped safety from garage secured

Structural issues resolved

Benefit / cost review proved positive

Partnered funding is found





25





City and Caltrain

Interests:  1.  Reduce congestion at Rollins/Millbrae and 2.  Bring shuttles closer to station entrance

1.  Shuttles only a tiny portion of Rollins/Millbrae congestion and rerouting them around would not reduce it.  Fewer cars is the answer to congestion.

2.  With East Station Road plan have brought most shuttles as close as possible to entrance, and other people walk Garden Lane Paseo





“Recommended” in DEIR

“Option” in FEIR



25



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
3.  Remaining issue:  South Station Road  


Insert map here for South Station Road discussion



26







“Recommended” in DEIR

“Option” in FEIR



26



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Access and Circulation Planning


Station Access & Circulation Plan finalization



Comprehensive Access Plan to led by Millbrae

	Horizon events: Caltrain electrification, HSR

	BART support and participation







27





YES.

BART-led DRAFT Acc+Circ Plan now complete

	met with all parties last Thursday.

Multiparty effort

	B, CT, ST, HSR, SFO, commute.org, Si Valley Bikes, Bay Trail, Millbrae, RUP.  

Medium-term horizon

	approx 5 years



Remaining issues:  





Will be incorporated longer term plan, led by Millbrae

	HSR, Caltrain electrification, etc.

	City is working on the timeline now.  



27



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
RUP Transportation Demand Management  Plan  


Developer TDM plan submitted to Millbrae



Required by Specific Plan

	compliant with C/CAG format, elements, penalties



Developer has committed to TDM elements, pending final discussions

28





(What are penalties for failure ??)



BART + RUP quantification of TDM 

	expected trip reduction:  _______%

	costs and coverage commitment:  $___ per year



?????????????????????????????????????????????????????????????????????????

28



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
RUP 20% affordable housing

55 units of veterans’ housing 

+ 20 units of affordable housing in 5B apartment building

Exceeds city’s Specific Plan area goal of 15%

Meets our Affordable Housing Policy standard



29







Site 6B: 	0.85 acres = 65 units/acre

	Below 50-60% of Area Median Income ($41,050 for 1-person household) 



Site 5B:  	within development at 128.4 units/acre

	Below 120% of Area Median Income ($98,900 for 2-person household)



Financing:  State/Federal Low Income Tax Credits, developer equity, other sources



Financing:  State/Federal Low Income Tax Credits, developer equity, other sources



The Core Companies, proposed developer for Vets’ Preference Housing

Established 1989

2,300 apartments in South Bay

Example: Willow Housing Veteran Apartments, Menlo Park, open December 2015

60 units in LEED certified structure

In-house services: wellness promotion, vocational and self-sufficiency training





29



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
City activities

June

Negotiations with RUP on impact fees

Evaluation of  Site Development Application and related documents 



Next steps 

Planning Commission review of Site Development Plan

City Council review of Fiscal Impact and related documents

Define process and funding for Comprehensive Access Plan

30





YES.





Fiscal impact report, commissioned by RUP, estimated net revenue to city at $1.2 million at buildout. 

Revenues = Property tax, property tax in lieu, TOT, sales tax.  Costs include police, fire, gen services and street maintenance.  Hotel/TOT = greatest net positive.







********************************************************************************************************************************

January:

Voted unanimously to adopt a Resolution amending the Millbrae General Plan.

Voted unanimously to adopt amendments to the Millbrae Zoning Ordinance.

Feb:  Approved Specific Plan and certified related EIR.  (3/2)

 

April – initiated a 2-yr GP update, including PDA in downtown.  

**************************************************************************************************************************

As a reminder, it is the City that approves the land use plan, the design and parking. 

C Council would be approving any “community benefit”, or negotiated LU terms other than building mass.  

30



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2014
Project next steps









31



City reviewing complete Application



City to schedule Planning Commission and City Council reviews















YES.



****************************************************************************************************

Intent to bring RUP precise plan, financial package to Board for consideration:

Relies on the City’s EIR and findings.   



31



Millbrae Station Update, June 2016
Specific Plan area and TODs

[insert map from 98 SP here]

32

1



1

1

1

7

8

5A

5B

6A

6B

station

N



TOD #1

TOD #2





Note that Site 1 includes CT parking, 185 spaces. 

Note:  East side and West side.   

32



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
EIR activities








33

Millbrae certified Specific Plan EIR for 

Specific Plan area

TOD #1 and 2



Millbrae adopted Specific Plan, but not TOD #1 and 2



BART has prepared Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and MMRP for TOD #2





The Project that is the subject of this EIR includes both the proposed Specific Plan Update, a long-term plan that

will be implemented over time as a policy document guiding future development activities, and two specific TOD

development projects (TOD #1 project and TOD #2 project). Therefore, this EIR serves as both a program- and

project-level EIR. This EIR discloses and evaluates the environmental impacts associated with the policies,

development standards, and anticipated buildout of the proposed Specific Plan Update at a program level, and the

environmental impacts associated with the two TOD projects at a project level. The programmatic portion of this

EIR is generally more qualitative in nature than the project-specific, more quantitative portion of the EIR.

The programmatic portion of this EIR does not evaluate the impacts of future individual projects that may be

proposed under the Specific Plan Update. However, if the program EIR addresses the program’s effects as

specifically and comprehensively as is reasonably possible, and later activities are within scope of the effects

examined in the program EIR, then additional environmental review may not be required for those future projects.

(See CEQA Guidelines Section 15168[c] and CEQA streamlining provisions.) When a program EIR is relied on

for a subsequent activity, the lead agency must incorporate feasible mitigation measures and alternatives developed

in the program EIR into the subsequent activities (CEQA Guidelines Section 15168[c][3]). If a subsequent activity

would have effects that are not within the scope of the program EIR, the lead agency must prepare a new Initial

Study leading to a Negative Declaration, a Mitigated Negative Declaration, or an EIR unless the activity qualifies

for an exemption. For these subsequent environmental review documents, this program EIR will serve as the firsttier

environmental analysis. The program EIR can also serve to streamline future environmental review of

subsequent projects.





33



Millbrae TOD Update, June  2016
Proposed motion









34

After review and consideration of the Final EIR certified by the City of Millbrae on Feb. 9, 2016, the Board:  1) Adopts the Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the TOD #2 Project, 2) Finds that changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which mitigate or avoid significant effects of the environment, 3) Finds that for the significant and unavoidable effects of the TOD #2 Project identified in the Final EIR, specific economic, legal, social, technological or other considerations make mitigation measures or alternatives identified in the EIR infeasible and specific overriding economic, legal, social technological or other benefits of the project outweigh the significant effects on the environment, as identified in the Final EIR and the Statement of Overriding Considerations, 4) Approves the TOD #2 Project, and 5) Delegates to the General Manager or her designee’s determination that appropriate environmental analysis of such modifications has ben performed by the City of Millbrae as lead agency pursuant to CEQA, and that such environmental analysis concludes that the modifications will not result in any new significant environmental effects not considered in the Final EIR or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.  









Motion

After review and consideration of the Final EIR certified by the City of Millbrae on Feb. 9, 2016, the Board:  1) Adopts the Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the TOD #2 Project, 

2) Finds that changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which mitigate or avoid significant effects of the environment, 

3) Finds that for the significant and unavoidable effects of the TOD #2 Project identified in the Final EIR, specific economic, legal, social, technological or other considerations make mitigation measures or alternatives identified in the EIR infeasible and specific overriding economic, legal, social technological or other benefits of the project outweigh the significant effects on the environment, as identified in the Final EIR and the Statement of Overriding Considerations, 

4) Approves the TOD #2 Project, and 

5) Delegates to the General Manager or her designee’s determination that appropriate environmental analysis of such modifications has ben performed by the City of Millbrae as lead agency pursuant to CEQA, and that such environmental analysis concludes that the modifications will not result in any new significant environmental effects not considered in the Final EIR or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.  

34



Millbrae TOD Update, June 2016
Recess to Closed Session









35

Discussion of real estate price and terms







Motion:  

After review and consideration of the Final EIR and environmental Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program adopted by the City of Millbrae on February 9, 2016, the Board: 

1) Adopts the City of Millbrae’s Findings, Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the TOD #2 Project as described in the project description contained in the Final EIR, 

2) Finds that changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment, 

3) Finds that for the significant and unavoidable effects of the TOD #2 Project identified in the Final EIR, specific economic, legal, social, technological or other considerations make mitigation measures or alternatives identified in the EIR infeasible and specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological or other benefits of the project outweigh the significant effects on the environment, as identified in the Final EIR and the City’s Statement of Overriding Considerations,  

4) Approves the TOD #2 Project, and 

5) delegates to the General Manager or her designee the decision to approve or disapprove any modifications to the TOD #2 Project as described in the Project Description contained in the Final EIR, based upon the General Manager or her designee’s determination that appropriate environmental analysis of such modifications has been performed by the City of Millbrae as lead agency pursuant to CEQA, and that such environmental analysis concludes that the modifications will not result in any new significant environmental effects not considered in the Final EIR or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.

35






Millbrae Transit Oriented Development Update




Board of Directors					   June 23, 2016











36



image2.png







image3.jpeg







image4.png







image5.png







image6.png







image7.png







image8.emf



image15.png







image16.jpeg

San Francisco
International
Airport







image17.png

SILICON VALLEY

BICYCLE
COALITION %






image18.png







image19.jpeg







image20.png







image21.png

Commute.org






image9.gif

samilrans







image10.jpeg

Cal






image11.png

ALIFORNIA

High-Speed Rail Authority






image12.gif

EVALE
S






image13.png







image14.png

Bay Area Rapid Transit







image22.emf



image23.emf



image24.png

| future route:

N |

N
\

FRANCISCO
INTERNATIONAL ARPORT.

RUNWAYS

| o mw
| WAL H’r,’ {\\\ \ @D —
V2 MSASP Boundary Ficed Route (RailBus) Westido Shuttes ~ Eastside Shutes Source: PlaceWorks, 2015.
City Boundary — SamlransECRNothbong s BART o local = Local —— Shutte iiation Optons
\o* &, Poveer Lines —— Samlrans ECR Southbound _ == Caltrain —_— U101 (North) for ransit Access
sssssss Polonta PdestrianPaseo ~ —— Samrans 397 — US 101 (South)
Figure 3-15

[ roo#18oundary

[=3 oo #28oundary

Transit Circulation Concept






image25.emf



image26.emf



image27.emf



image28.png

Legend

Existing
el Bus Route

m 111 BART/ Caltrain

Class | Tral Facilities
Class il Bike Facilities
Additional Bicycle
Connection

Primary Pedestrian
Connection

g
1L

BART bike lockers

“Please Walk Bike"
Pavement Marking —————

Add pavementmarkings
on sidewalk to indicate
bikes share path

Teay ourwied B

Secure bike parking

¥d3/ L6€

=

Bike parking retrofit

S S
Staple style bike racks

Aviador Ave

Channel ‘
= T
W
U <
s Lo W
|
of [\ fom 1l ¢
& 2
€| 18
Service Road 3 ’ Ik
8 f § z
8 L L
- 7
o i i q
| s
N
. 25 )

Bike Kitchen

Staple style bike racks

Millbrae Ave

Maintain wide
sidewalk as
alternate
bikeway route

Constrained
bike box

In-Lane
Sharrows

Class|
Multi-Use
Path

City of
Millbrae
Planned Bike/
Pedestrian
overcrossing
and
connection

toBay Trail

74
397 Night
Owl Service







image29.png

N

LEGEND
)
CLASS 1 BIKE LOCKERS 18EKES.
B £ it -
\ .
- PR
= o — 1l e

T T T ITTTTTTTTTTTrTT
N s oo speanmo
- > N INFORMATION PROVIDED BY PROVECT waes
. N ARCHITECTS.

oW SKECONT  seBeS

+= EXISTING

GARAGE

AVIADOR AVE

ROLLINS RD

B STORAGE LOCATIN
PSDEBULOING

PARKING

-
L

EXISTING Bl
STATION \/
7
s o | e hobiee =

cussz THosioeD
e R
ATEACHLocAToN

CUASS2 METALBKE RACK

CLASS | THOSDED BIELOCKER







image30.png







image31.emf



image32.emf



image33.jpeg

M [] BART Operated
B [0 -Privately Operated
[ caltrain Operated

2096
1 square =10 parking spaces

863

185

CURRENT PARKING

339
cannot be

i developed due
O000000000 o so fiight
0000000000  paths « pee
0000000000  epsement
oooooooooo
oooooo

2959 BART-Operated spaces

gooooooooo
ooooooooo

185 Caltrain-Operated spaces

2096

392

109

185

PROPOSED PARKING

oooooooooo
oooooooooo
ooooooooon
oooooooooo
EDDDDDDDDE

2488 BART-Operated spaces

3233 Total Spaces

oooooooooo
ooooooooo

185 Caltrain-Operated spaces

POTENTIAL






image34.emf



image1.png








Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

» The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to:

Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’'s employees. CALPERS is
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $300 billion.

Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005.
The Trust as of March 31, 2016
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,
b Benchmark 6.75%,
c.  Total net assets $231.4 million and inception to date return is 6.4%,
d Quarterly Report to the Unions

Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees
(S15/month),

Life Insurance for retired employees which is currently unfunded but with a net required
OPEB contribution of $18.0 million as of March 31, 2016.

The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual
actuarial study.





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

Market Value of Total Pension Unfunded Pension
Valuation Date Assets Liability Liability % Funded

Retirement Pension with CALPERS

Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2014 $ 1,663,622,000 S 1,973,973,607 S 310,351,607 84.3%

Safety Employees 6/30/2014 S 181,599,285 S 271,774,834 S 90,175,549 66.8%
Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2015 S 221,765,847 S 333,141,399 S 111,375,552 66.6%
Other Post Employment Benefits

Life Insurance 6/30/2015 S - S 30,658,870 S 30,658,870 0.0%

Survivors Benefits Note A -----------mememe

Note A Actuarial valuation for this plan is currently being calculated.





%

Q ®m Q S ©€ =

120.0%

100.0%

80.0%

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

0.0%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress

NS

- —n
‘/‘ i

6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014

Valuation Date

== Miscellaneous
== Safety





Q ® Q S € =M

70.00%

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

Retiree Health Benefits Plan

/

Vs

/

pd

=¢=% Funded

6/30/2008

6/30/2009

6/30/2010

6/30/2011 6/30/2012

Valuation Date

6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

Accounts Payable

»  We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter,
the District was able to process 92.6% of all paid invoices within 30 days. Of those that were not processed in 30
days, 6.8% were processed within 60 days, and .6% were processed within 90 days. The trend depicting the past
year is shown here:

Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend

100% -
90% -
80% -
70% -
60% 1 S0 o 80.9% 92.6% ® 1-30 Days Paid Percent
50% - M 31-60 Days Paid Percent

B 61-90 Days Paid Percent
40% -
91+Days Paid Percent

30% -

Number of Voucher Paid in Percent

20% -

10% -

VA 3.6% % B

o | ' 0.6%
2015Q 4 | h

2016 Q 1 2016 Q2 2016 Q3

Invoiced Fiscal Quarter





days.

O meoO P>»P -2 mMAO XXM

JANRNANRRY

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

The District’s experience in paying its vendors is generally consistent with its peers. However, we will
continue to try and expedite. About 99% of invoices paid within the quarter are processed within 60

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AGING BENCHMARKING

0.00%
100.00% | 0.11%

90.00% -
80.00% -

70.00% J

60.00% -

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

LA Metro

T 000%————

2.00%

98.00%

SEMTA

Transportation Agency

BART

0.60%

M 61-90 days
m 31-60 days
m 0-30 days






TOTAL OUTSTANDING (IN THOUSANDS)

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16
Accounts Receivable

»  The time to receive reimbursement funding from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount
outstanding is $63,936,000 as of March 31, 2016

Amount Billed A/R Grants Outstanding as of 3/31/2016

30,000

$25,963
OTHERS

$25,245
OTHERS

25,000

20,000

15,000

$11,428

10,000

5,000

$509
OTHERS

Current 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121+ days
NUMBER OF DAYS OUTSTANDING





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

Experience by other transportation agencies shows that reimbursements from funding agencies are not always
received within 30 days.

~COUNTS.R BLE AGING BENCHMARKING

120.00%
P
E 100.00%
R 25.50%
C 80.00% 41.50%
1.20%
E 0.00% 0.80%
0.02%
N 60.00%
T 40.60% m over 120 days
m 91-120 days
A  40.00% ™ 61-90 days
74.48% m 31-60 days
G H 0-30 days
E 20.00%
S
0.00%
VTA

LA Metro

BART

Transportation Agency 8





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16 done

3. DISTRICT FINANCES

The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero. There is not much available. As will be reflected in the next Quarterly Report, we have found some investments yielding an
incremental increase. These investments are in compliance with the District’s Investment Policy.

Cash and Investments

Total Cash in Banks: $153,755,723

Total CD Investments: $960,805

Total Government Securities: $424,920,000

Return on T-Bill Investments: Weighted average is .52% - Poor investment environment, but always looking. The weighted
average maturity (WAM) of our T-Bill Investment portfolio is 275 days.

Pie chart showing the difference in cash, cd investments and government securities

YV VVVY

M Cash In Bank
CD Investments

$960,805 B Government Securities

FHDN
FHLB
FNMA
FFCB

¥ ¥ ¥ ¥






Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/16

Debt

» The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:
1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt

Sales Tax Revenue Debt
» Currently outstanding debt of $629.6 million.
> Annual Debt Service $54.7 million.

» Debt Services comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State
Board of Equalization.

» This directly impacts the operating budget.

General Obligation Bonds

These were passed by a 2/3 majority of eligible voters.
Currently outstanding debt of $603.5 million.

Issued $740 of $980 authorized.

Debt paid by annual assessment of BART property tax holders and does not impact the
operating budget.

Most recent assessment as of this current year is $2.60/5100,000

YV V VYV

A\

10





